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About the Mational Audit Office

Mandate

The statutory mandate and responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor-General are provided
for under Article 143 of the Constitution of the United Republic of Tanzania of 1977 and in
Section 10 (1) of the Public Audit Act, Cap. 418.

To be a2 credibie and modern Suprame Audit
Iastitution with high-quality audit seqvices For
enhancing public confidence.

'

To provide hlgh-quality audit services through
the modernisalion of Functiohs that enhance
accountability and  tramsparency in  the
management of public resources,

Motta

Modarnising External Audit For Stronger
Public Confidence

We detiver high-quality audit
We are an impartial public wq t4

K services based oe
institution, independently apprapriate professional
offering  high-quality audit knawledge, skills, and best
services to our clients in an practices

unbiased manner.

Tearmaork Spirit intearity

CORE
We  value  and  work VALUES We obsorve and maintain high
together with Intermal ethical standards and rules of
and external faw in the delivery of audit
stakeholdors., wrvices,
Resutys-Orienterd Creativity and
innaovation

We focus on
achievements of reliable,
timely, accurate, useful,
and clear performance
targots.

We encourage, create,
and  innovate  value.
adding itdeas for  the
improvement of audit
services.,

© This audit report is intended to be used by Vocational Education and Training Authority (VETA),
and may form part of the annual general report, which once tabled to the National Assembly,
becomes a public document; hence, its distribution may not be limited.

| Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24
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1.0  INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL

Chairman of VETA Board,

Vocational Education and Training Authority,
PO Box 802,

DODOMA.

1.1  REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unqualified Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of Vocational Education and Training Authority (VETA),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects,
the financial position of Vocational Education and Training Authority as at 30 June 2024, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) Accrual basis of accounting and the
manner required by the Public Finance Act, Cap. 348.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
section below entitled “Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of
the Financial Statements”. | am independent of the Vocational Education and Training Authority
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the National Board of Accountants and
Auditors (NBAA) Code of Ethics, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements,

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
| draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Note 8 of the financial statements describes non-current assets estimated at USD 10,413,275.09
(equivalent to TZS 22 billion) that were transferred to VETA in 2022 as per handover documents
from the donor contractor. These assets, comprising land, buildings, office and training tools,
machines, equipment, furniture, and ICT infrastructure, relate to the construction of the
Kagera Regional Vocational Training and Services Centre, which was completed and handed
over to VETA in 2022. While operations at the center have commenced, these assets have not
been recognized in the financial statements due to the absence of an itemized valuation of
each asset included.

| Controlier and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 | 1
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. | have determined
that there are no key audit matters to communicate in my report.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Report by Those Charged with Governance, the statement of VETA Board responsibilities and
the Declaration by the Head of Finance but does not include the financial statements and my
audit report thereon, which | obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with my audit of the financial
statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed on the other information that | obtained prior to the
date of this audit report, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IPSAS and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an audit
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1S5Als will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

| Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 o |



As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may invotve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If | conctude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required
to draw attention in my audit report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern; and

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

i communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, [ determine those
matters that were of mast significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my audit report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reascnably be expected to outweigh the
public interest of such communication.

In addition, Section 10 (2) of the Public Audit Act, Cap. 418 requires me to satisfy myself that
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with the appropriate accounting standards.

' Controller and Auditor General i AR/PA/VETA/2023/24
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Further, Section 48(3) of the Public Procurement Act, Cap. 410 requires me to state in my
annual audit report whether or not the audited entity has complied with the procedures
prescribed in the Procurement Act and its Regulations.

1.2  REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATIONS
1.2.1 Compliance with the Public Procurement laws

Subject matter: Compliance audit on procurement of works, goods, and services

| performed a compliance audit on the procurement of works, goods, and services in the
Vocational Education and Training Authority for the financial year 2023/24 as per the Public
Procurement laws.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that the procurement of goods, works, and services
of Vocational Education and Training Authority is generally in compliance with the requirements
of the Public Procurement laws in Tanzania.

1.2.2 Compliance with the Budget Act and Other Budget Guidelines

Subject matter: Budget formulation and execution

| performed a compliance audit on budget formulation and execution in the Vocational
Education and Training Authority for the financial year 2023/24 as per the Budget Act and other
Budget Guidelines.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that the Budget formulation and execution of
Vocational Education and Training Authority is generally in compliance with the requirements
of the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines.

“Charles E. Kichere -~
Controller and Auditor General,
Dodoma, United Republic of Tanzania.

March 2025
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2.0 REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2024

2.1 INTRODUCTION

The Vocational Education and Training Board (VET Board) is pleased to present its financial
statements for the year ending June 30, 2024, detailing the financial condition of VETA. These
statements have been meticulously prepared in accordance with the accrual basis of
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) and Tanzania Financial Reporting
Standards (TFRS 1). Additionally, they include a report from Those Charged with Governance,
as mandated by the Vocational Education and Training Act Cap. 82 (R.E. 2019).

2.2 VETA PROFILE

2.2.1 Establishment

VETA is an autonomous Government Agency established under the Vocational Education and
Training Act, CAP 82 (R.E. 2019). Following its establishment, the Authority took over the
functions of the National Vocational Training Division of the Government, which previously
operated under the repealed Vocational Training Act of 1974,

2.3 MAIN ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Authority are to oversee the Vocational Training functions in
Tanzania through: Provision, Promotion, and Financing.

Authority’s financing
The Authority manages the VET Fund, which is financed through the following sources:

a) All assets owned by VETA;

b} One-third of the 3.5% Skills Development Levy (SDL} coilections;

¢) Government funding, grants, and donations from both domestic and international sources;
d) Other income, including revenue generated from services; and

) Income from training on live projects {Income Generating Activities - IGA).

As a non-profit public institution, VETA does not declare dividends. According to its Corporate
Plan, any surplus generated will be reinvested to finance future activities.

2.4 AUTHORITY’S VISION
“Tanzania with sufficient and competent artisans.”
2.5 AUTHORITY'S MISSION

To ensure the availability of Vocational Skills in Tanzania through provision and promotion of
Vocational Education and Training (VET) to meet labour market demand for socio-economic
development.

- Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VE%K}ZO?3/24 3
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2.6 AUTHORITY’S CORE VALUES

People first;

Dexterity and creativity;
Teamwork and integrity;
Relevancy.

2.7 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors is composed of eleven members who define and periodically reassess
the Authority's philosophy, policies, and objectives. The Board convenes four regular meetings
annually and may hold additional meetings as necessary to address the Authority’s business
needs. Specifically, the Board establishes strategic objectives, agrees on performance criteria,
and delegates the detailed planning and implementation of approved policies to management.
To ensure adherence to policies and the achievement of objectives, the Board holds
management accountable by monitoring and controlling operations.

The Board entrusts the day-to-day management of the Authority’s operations to the Director
General, who is supported by a management team of nine members—eight based at the head
office and the Principal of Morogoro Vocational Teachers Training College (MVTTC).
Additionally, nine Regional Directors oversee nine zonal offices. The Director General reports
to the VET Board, which holds ultimate responsibility for managing the Authority.

The Authority's Head Office is situated at Plot No. 18, Central Business Park (CPB) VETA Road,
Dodoma. its operations extend across 9 Zonal Offices, 17 Regional Vocational Training and
Service Centres (RVTSCs), 16 Vocational Training Centres (VTCs), the Morogoro Vecational
Teachers Training College (MVTTC), 2 special centres (Kipawa and VHTTI), and 46 District
Vocational Training Centres.

The Authority is dedicated to the principles of effective corporate governance, with the Board
of Directors recognizing the critical importance of integrity, transparency, and accountability.
To uphold these standards, the Board has established four committees: the Human Resources
and Administration Committee, the Quality Assurance Committee, the Audit Committee, and
the Planning and Finance Committee, each tasked with ensuring the highest standards of
corporate governance across the organization.

. Controller and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2.8

COMPOSITION OF THE VET BOARD

The following members of the VET Board served during the reporting period, as of the date of
this report, unless otherwise stated:

Table 1: VET board members

: : | f . — — e
1S/ Gender | ves , Ag : Nationalit | Institutional e es
N Name Positicn/ Duration e y | Affiliation Quak‘lmlrﬁcatmns
. . Male | VET Board Chairman o
1| E:ﬁgst Mch;ﬁ:‘;“‘ | from 14 August, 2023 to 61 | Tanzanian Zre"c"?rft';rt]z:t . Ph.D. in Law
; | 13 August 2026 : PP S
: . Female ! : Master  Degree
Gladvs  Muhesa | | Member since 2 Employers . of Business
2 éMbel?.’«ra | September 2023 to 1! 48 | Tanzanian | Association - | Administration
- September 2026 ; i ATE ‘in  Corporate
i f Management
Male . i Masters of
Prime P :
i , : Science in
i | Minister’s : Eeonomics:
Masingiri Masatu  Member since : | Office, i Economic g’olic
3 s |  September 2023 to 1: 48  Tanzanian : Youth, oty
i Robert i : | i and Planning for
; i September 2026 ‘ Labour and ! .
; ... Developing and
; people with | o
e * Transitionat
| Disabilities :
; B 1 , ;. - Economies
- Jane Claude = Female | Member since 2 i Trade Union - Diolom in
4 | Mihanji ‘ ' September 2023 to 1: 52 | Tanzanfan | RAAWU éjozmal?srn
f f . September 2026 * N
. . . Female | Member since 1 ! Master of Arts in
5 | ;La;lida Timothy | September 2023 to 1 60 | Tanzanian YEETPdeer Community
' ' September 2026 ‘ | _ Development
Nuhu Jabir | Male Member since 2. * VET Provider Masters in Social
6 | Mrum 3  September 2023 to 11 47 | Tanzanian | o, ata }Wor; >
a ‘ - September 2026 i
Abdulhamid Mate Member since 2 , Emptoyers ;‘3?;:;5 of
7 Masai | September 2023 to 1 39 | Tanzanian | Association - : Resources
! September 2026 1 : ATE :
o : - Management
- Longino Male | Member since 2 | ' VET Provider . Ph.D. in
&  Rutagwelera . September 2023 to 1. 58 | Tanzanian | TEC : Systematic
- Kamuhabwa September 2026 : i ’ " Philosophy |
o Male o since 5 Ministry  of = Master of
9 Ezekiel ~Magot! | September 2023 to 1 © 59 | Tanzanian | Ed_ucatlon, 5 Sqence n
: Kunyaranyara n , i | Science and | Highway
; eptember 2026 ; . .
Technology | Engineering
Costansia Female . Member since | Ministry  of | ﬁ\laster SBBS.%\;?
10 ns! | September 2023 to 1! Tanzanian | Industry and . ;
| Stanslaus Akaro : . 56 i Administration -
‘ September 2026 : i Trade ;
: . : i Marketing
. . Female | Member since 2 : .
1 Tenesia Elias . September 2023 to 1. 38  Tanzanian Trade Union ‘ Bgcheior of 'Arts
P Katukuru ; : i L - CWT i with Education
: ! September 2026 | ‘

. Controller and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

..... R : ; | . . — .

5/ Name Gender Position/ Duration Ag ! Nationalit lnst‘l"cut.lonal i Qualifications

' N - ie 1y Affiliation |
: . Male : ' Director | Masters of
i CPA. Anthony M. ! . Board Secretary from 12 o : Science in

12 ¢ ; ) : 41 | Tanzanian | General -

i Kasore © April 2024 to date : | . Finance and
: : - : VETA :
s ; } i | Investment

2.9 COMMITTEES OF THE VETA'S BOARD

The VET Board functions through four committees, namely:

i) Planning and Finance Committee (PFC),
il)  Quality Assurance Committee (QAC);

iti} Human Resource and Administration Committee (HRAC); and

iv}  Board Audit Committee (BAC)

Table 2: Committee members and objectives

' S/N Committee Name and Members Objectives
1 Planning and Finance Committee (PFC): The objectives of the PFC Committee are to:
Costansia Stanslaus Akaro - Chairperson of the | a) Review the roles of the Authority as outtined in the
- Committee from October, 2023 to 1 September | VET policy and the VET Act, and recommend
20726 ~amendments to the Act to align with national needs;
Gladys Muhesa Mbetwa - Member from October, | b) Guide Management in the development of Strategic
| 2023 to 1 September 2026 - Action Plans to fulfil the Authority’s roles;
Clotilda Timothy Ndezi - Member from October, c) Explore various funding sources to support the
2023 to 1 September 2026 implementation of the Strategic Plan;
CPA. Anthony M. Kasore - Secretary from 12 April d) Review the Authority’s annual and suppiementary
| 2024 to date : budgets;
e) Evaluate the plans of various Directorates for
. implementing the Strategic Plan;
fy Assess Quarterly Progress Reports on the
: implementation of planned activities;
g) Review the Authority’s investment strategies;
h) Annually review the Autharity's audit reports;
i) Make recommendaticns to the VET Board on all the
- aforementioned tasks for the Board’s consideration.
2 Quality Assurance Committee (QAQ) | The objectives of the QAC Committee are to:
: . Review proposals on new curricula and implementation;

. Controller and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

S/N | Committee Name and Members

 Objectives

. of the Committee from October, 2023 to 1
| September 2026

i 2023 to 1 September 2026
Abdulhamid Masai - Member from October 2023

to 1 September 2026

2024 to date

'Longino Rutagwelera Kamuhabwa - Chairpersen

Review proposals on quality assurance policies and

i guidelines;

. Review proposals and performance regarding the |

Tenesia Elias Katukuru - Member from October

following issues: Trainee admission criteria and

- administration of the system;

i Conducting the administration of continuous internal
. assessment;

CPA. Anthony M. Kasore - Secretary from 12 April

Setting and moderating examinations and assessment
schemes;

Appointing setters, moderators, supervisors,

| invigilators, assessors, verifiers and markers;

" Assessing examinations facilities and means amenable
. to safe custody and transmission of examinations and
i assessment items to designated centres;

! Publishing examinations and assessment results;

§Evaluating implementation of examinations and
. assessment programmes,

- Certification.

- Review proposals on total quality management plans for
| VET system, make recommendations to the Board and
. supervise implementation;

Review proposals on performance indicators for VTCs;

| Review consolidated labour market needs identification
' reports in relation to national and sectoral skills

- development priorities;

Review annual and quarterty training plans;

. Undertake any other task that the Board may assign to
i the Committee.

3, Human Resource and Administration
' Committee (HRAC)

| 2026

£ 2023 to 1 September 2026

| 2023 to 1 September 2026

| Jane Claude Mihanji - Member from October, | p.yiow supplies Manual

The obiectives of the HRAC Committee are to:

; , ' Review human resources management policies and
" Nuhu Jabir Mruma - Chairperson of the 8 P

Committee from October 2023 to 1 September :

procedures;

i Review collective bargaining agreement;

Gladys Muhesa Mbelwa - Member from October, . Consider disciplinary and appeal matters,

| Controller and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

S/N | Committee Name and Members Objectives
CPA. Anthony M. Kasore - Secretary from 12 Aprit ¢ Conduct or outsource interviews for Directors and
2024 to date ! Centre Managers;
Consider productivity improvement plans and staff
- incentives;
Undertake any other task that the Board may assign.
4 Board Audit Committee (BAC):

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to ensure that VETA establishes and maintains robust
control systems within the Authority, and that Management fosters and upholds the necessary respect for
the internal control framework among all stakeholders. The committee is also tasked with ensuring that

. the Board Audit Committee members, as well as internal and external auditors, collaborate effectively
and have unrestricted access to any information needed to perform their duties. Additionally, the Audit
i Committee is responsible for ensuring the independence of both internal and external auditors,

| NTNAME [ POSITION . QUALIFICATIONS
| 1 Ezekiel Magoti = Chairperson of the Committee | Master of Science in Highway |
Kunyaranyara . from October 2023 to 1 September | Engineering 5
. | 2026 -
"2 Ms.  Dorah | Secretary from Post Graduate Diploma in Legal
. Mweta . October 2023 to date  Practice :
'Y Costansia  Member from October 2023 to 1  Master’s Degree in Business
. Stanslaus . September 2026 - Administration - Marketing :
- Akaro ’ 3

4 Masingiri
Pl Masatu Robert

“Member from October 2023 to 1*
. September 2026

Masters of Science in Economics: :

' Economic Policy and Planning for :

Developing and Transitional
P : - Economies :
| {5 CPA Theresia | Member from December 2023 to 26 ; CPA (T)
.| Mihayo ' February 2023
.6 CPA. Timothy | Member from December 2023 to 26 - CPA (T)
.. Nikalao ' February 2023 :
| Controller and Auditor General 10 ;
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2.10  MEETINGS OF THE VET BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

In the Financial Year 2023/24, the VET Board held three regular meetings and three (3)
extraordinary meetings. Additionally, various committees under the VET Board also conducted
their respective meetings. Every member of the VET Board showed strong commitment by
dedicating the necessary time to participate in these meetings.

Brief of key matters discussed and deliberated during the Board and its Committees’ meetings
were:
A: Matters related to changes in management or governance structure:

1. On September 2023, a Vocational Education Board Members where appointed. The
Vocational Education and Training Board contained eleven members with a chairperson
appointed by the President and other members appointed by the Minister responsible
for Vocational Education and Training.

2. Appointment of the Director General by The President of the United Republic of
Tanzania, who is the Chief Executive of the Authority and is directly responsible to the
Board for the day-to-day administration of the affairs of the Authority.

B: Matters related to strategic decisions:
1. Supervision of construction of the Office of VETA Head Quarters building in Dodoma.
2. Approval of yearly financial budget.
3. Approval of Annual Procurement Planning.
4. Approval of VET Curriculum.

Below is a summary showing the number of meetings attended by each VET Board and
committee member from the time of their appointment until 30 June 2024.

Table 3: Meeting attendances of the board and committees

1 Committee Meetings
Mo | Members 1P "PFC_| QAC | HRAC | BAC
1 Prof. Sifuni Ernest Mchome 3
2 i Gladys Muhesa Mbelwa 3 3 3
3 ! Masingiri Masatu Robert 3 ‘ 3
4 Jane Claude Mihanji 3 .3
5 . Clotilda Timothy Ndezi 2 | 3 S
6 Nuhu Jabir Mruma 3 .3
7 | Abdulhamid Masai 3 3
8 | Longino Rutagwelera Kamuhabwa 3 3 7
9 | Ezekiel Magoti Kunyaranyara _ 3 3
10 | Costansia Stanslaus Akaro 3 3 i 3
11 Tenesia Elias Katukuru 3 3
12 i CPA Theresia Mihayo 2 i : 2
___________ 13 i CPA. Timothy Nikalao 2 b 2
14 1 CPA Anthony M. Kasore 3 3 31 3 3
11

| Controller and Auditor General AR/PAIVETA/2023/24




VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

KEY:

PFC - Planning and Finance Committee

QAC - Quality Assurance Committee

HRAC - Human Resource and Administration Committee
BAC - Board Audit Committee

2.11 MANAGEMENT

The Authority is structured into five functional Directorates, each led by a director, along with
one operational Directorate, which is headed by the Principal of Morogoro VETA Teachers
Training College. The functional Directorates encompass all facets of the Authority’s operations
and activities.

o]

) Directorate of Vocational Education and Training;

) Directorate of Assessment and Certification;

} Directorate of Human Resources and Administration;
)

)

[ T T w

Directorate of Labour Market Planning and Development; and
Directorate of Finance.

1]

Five units operate under the Office of the Director General as outlined betow.

a) Internal Audit Unit;
b) Legal Unit;

c) Pubtic Relations Unit;
d) Procurement Management Unit; and
e) Information, Communication, and Technology Unit

2.12 ASSESSMENT AND CERTIFICATION

As at 30 June 2024, VETA had successfully graduated a total of 25,669 candidates across various
qualification categories, including NABE All Stage, CBA Graded, VT Certificate, and VT Diploma
under the VETA Assessment. Below is a detailed breakdown of the number of successful
candidates within each qualification category.

Table 4: Breakdown of the number of successful candidates

2023/24 C 2022723 ] 202122 |

Attempted | Certified | Attempted | Certified = Attempted | Certified |
* NABE all Stage TV a0 179 et 2500 1,401 | 44t
“Competence  Based | 41,876 | 23,658 - 51,075 | 33,788 42,116 . 26,708
| Assessment (Graded) |
' Integrated  Mining 77 T 98 a0 78 e
. Technical  Training 5 5 : ‘ 5
L (IMTT) i | | : 5
- Dual  Apprenticeship 236 | 197 137 .8 1 133 | 70

. Training System

| Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 | 13

|




VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

Ty R T T T 2777 R
"1 Attempted | Certified | Attempted | Certified | Attempted | Certified |
“Recognition of Prior | 1285 1182 . 1,342 | 1,338 | 2,644 | 2,537
- Learning (RPL) ; : |
Vocational Teachers 142 130 86 66 66 64
 (VT) Certificate ' ]

- Diploma  (Vocational R TR 43 5 15 0

| Teachers and Textile ] : |

and Fashion Design) : §

 Certificate NTA Level 232 194 o215 214 104 103

LIV (VHTTD) ;

| Certificate NTA Level | 0 o 29 0 29 . 0 0

|V (VHTT)) ; |
" Diploma NTA Level VI 52 47 270 269 | 54 54
(VHTT])

. Total 44,657 | 25,669 = 54,456 36,124 = 46,611 | 30,023

Source: VETA Graduates data
2.13 VET STUDENTS' ENROLMENT

The capacities and actual enrolments of VETA institutions, categorized by gender, are
presented in the table below:

Table 5: Student enrolments

VET student enrolments for the year 2023/24
. . . Actual Enrolments Capacity
C
VET Institutions Ow:jershlp apacity Male Femile :E:otal Utilization %
VETA 75,000 64,995 | 18,979 83,974 111
] 75,000 | 64,995 18,979 83,974

Source: VETA Enrolment data

2.14  KEY CHALLENGES/SHORTFALLS AND THE WAY FORWARD

The Authority faced several challenges while carrying out its functions during the year under
review. The primary challenges encountered were as follows;

Table 6: Key challenges and way forward

‘No. - Challenges - Way forward

1. The Authdrity is chféntEy experiencing a 'min'addressing this cha{lenge, the Authorfty has
shortage of 1,152 staff members, including = implemented the following measures:
782 teachers, which is necessary to ensure
effective training across the existing 51
Centres and the 29 new ones.

Allocating a budget for new hires each year with the
' aim of addressing the current staffing shortfall,

Providing opportunities for employees seeking
transfers from other institutions; and

' Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 | 13 |
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No. Challenges

2. Lack of stable and sufficient vehicles for
teaching drivers at VETA colleges. A total of
100 vehicles are required.

3. The number of VETA institutions has
increased from 51 to 80 following the
completion of 29 new centers. As a result of
this expansion, along with the growing

responsibilities of the Authority, there is a -
shortage of 55 vehicles needed to provide |

services.

4. Deterioration of Buildings in 28 VETA Centers.

5, -Sﬁ'br'tég'é of Eqﬂipmeﬁt: -

2.15  SOLVENCY

Way forward

' Utilizing interns from TaESA.

- Actions Taken: The Authority has been subn’ﬁtting
| requests to the Ministry of Finance and Planning, as
well as to non-governmental organizations, for the

provision of used vehicles to support driver training
programs,

. Qutcome: The Authority has received a total of 63
. used vehicles, which have been distributed to various
~ centers for driver training purposes, with some also
- being used as instructional tools {training models).

“The management has continued to allocate budgets

for the purchase of new vehicles to address this
shortfall. For the 2023/24 fiscal year, a total of TZ5
1,490,231,215 has been set aside for the purchase of
eight vehicles and one tricycle (Bajaj). Additionally,
the management has requested approval to carry
over the budget for the purchase of these vehicles
and the tricycle after obtaining the necessary
procurement approvals from the Office of the Prime
Minister. Management will also continue to allocate
funds annually for vehicle purchases.

The Authority has continued to allocate budgets for
the ongoing renovation of buildings. In the 2023/24

- financial year, funds were specifically allocated for
" the refurbishment of the hospitality and tourism

training workshop at VETA Mikumi and VETA Mtwara

. centers.

- The Authority is utilizing Public-Private Partnerships
- {PPP) to enhance the provision of vocational training.
- Furthermore, the authority set aside fund amounting

to TZS: 7.1Bill for purchase of training equipment in

financial year 2024/25.

The VET Board confirms that all applicable accounting standards have been adhered to and that
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The VET Board
reasonably expects that VETA has sufficient resources to continue its operations for the

foreseeable future.

. Controller and Auditor General
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2.16  CAPITAL

The Capital of VETA is comprised of capital grants, development funds, reserves, and retained
surplus. VETA has adhered to all requirements related to capital maintenance, which is
sustained through national budget allocations provided by the Ministry of Education and
Vocational Training. As of 30 June 2024, the capital balance was as follows:

Table 7: Capital analysis

2023/24
T8

Description

TZS

Accumulated Funds

157,598,247,648

159,503,398,002

Taxpayer’s Fund

128,859,816,445

128,859,816,445

Total

286,458,064,093

288,363,214,447

Source: Financial statements

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR 2023/24

For the year ending 30 June 2024, VETA reported a deficit of TZS 1,905,150,354, which resulted
from the recognition of accrued expenses. For the previous year, 2022/23, the audited surplus
was TZS 18,493,316,726 compared to the restated balance, which was surplus amounting to
TZS 16,825,345,265 in the year of comparison. The restated balance is due to derecognition of
receivable balances that were paid and recognition of assets that led to an increase in
depreciation expense, hence increase in expenses.

2.17  COMMENTARY IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

2.17.1 INTRODUCTION

The Financial Statements for the year 2023/24 document the Vocational Education and Training
Authority's financial activities, including the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Financiat Performance, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Net Assets, Statement
of Comparison of Budget and Actual, and Notes to the Financial Statements.

2.17.2 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Financial Position comprises Current Assets, Non-current Assets, Current Liabilities, Non-
current Liabilities, and Equity.

2.17.3 CURRENT ASSETS

a) Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and Cash equivalents for the year 2023/24 amounted to TZS 4,228,893,737 being balance
at the year-end for own source, recurrent, and development expenditure, while TZS
11,936,723,244 was the audited balance for the financial year 2022/23.

- Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24
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The Authority restated the Cash and Cash equivalents balance for the year 2022/23 to TZS
11,667,423,517 the reason being recognition of Expected Credit Loss due to adoption of IPSAS
41,

b) Receivables and Prepayments

Receivables and prepayment as at 30 June 2024 were TZS 1,871,906,282 which include
prepayments as at 30 June 2024 amounting to TZS 14,352,921, staff receivable TZS
750,768,802, and Imprest receivable balance of TZS 220,936,800 and service receivable of TZS
885,847,759, the balance detail include prepayment made for procurement of building
materials for construction of gas stove and fuel for the Authority at Moshi RVTSC, trainees fee
receivables and trade receivables which have not been collected; outstanding imprest and long
staff receivables which are in the process of being incurred /expensed (written off); whereas
the previous year 30 June 2023 was TZS 1,914,212,913.

c) Inventories

Inventories as at 30 June 2024 were TZS 680,443,014 as consumables remained during the
period under review, while TZS 617,182,939 was for the previous year as at 30 June 2023. The
balance is composed of training materials and student meals for trainees who continue with
short and long courses.

2.17.4 NON-CURRENT ASSET

a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

During the period under review, the year 2023/24, PPE had a balance of TZS 280,629,020,027,
which is greater than the audited amount of TZS 195,768,646,586 for the previous year,
2022/23. In the year 2023/24, there were additional PPE made in respect of the completed
construction projects, purchase of Machinery, scientific Equipment, hardware, desktops and
laptops, and recognition of land.

The Authority restated the PPE balance for the year 2022/23 to TZ5 205,337,584,336 the reason
being recognition of WIP, whose usage started in mid-2022/23 and also recognition of grant of
assets received as a non-monetary grant, which as a whole led to the increase of PPE balance
for the year 2022/23.

b) Intangible Assets

During the period under review, the year 2023/24, Intangible Assets had a balance of TZS
213,157,801, and the restated amount was TZS 34,526,947 for the previous year of 2022/23.
The increase in intangible assets is due to the acquisition of VET DATAMIS software during
2023/24.

¢) Worlkin Progress

During the period under review of the year 2023/24, Work in Progress (WIP) had a balance of
TZS 11,513,293,204 and the audited amount of TZS 88,667,906,955 for the previous year of
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2022/23. This represents ongoing construction projects of 25 District Vocational Training
Centres, expansion of training facilities for ten Centres, rehabilitation and expansion of
facilities in VETA Centres, Construction of Kigamboni DVTC which is among the 65 DVTCs and
VETA Head office Construction at Medeli Dodoma.

The Authority restated the WIP balance for the year 2022/23 to TZS 79,160,918,194 the reason
being recognition of assets by VETA HQ of WIP Balances in the centers whaose usage and
capitalization was done in mid-2022/23 by the respective centers; this exercise resulted to the
restatement and decrease in WIP Balance.

2.17.5 CURRENT LIABILITIES

a) Payables & Accruals

As at 30 June 2024, there were payables and accruals amounting to TZS 8,143,629,669, while
the audited balance for the previous year was TZS 651,588,326. The balance is a result of unpaid
Creditors, mainly in training materials, student meals, and staff claims, due to the unreleased
part of the SDL Fund in 2023/24.

The Authority restated the Payables and Accruals balance for the year 2022/23 up to TZS
1,462,792,896, the reason being recognition of accrued expenses, other payables, staff claim
and supplies of goods and services and inclusion of recurrent and development deferred Income
balances.

b) Provisions

There was a reversal of provision for ECL amounting to TZS 1,705,014,139 for the year 2023/24
that resulted from the adoption of IPSAS 41, whereby TZS 128,308,492 emanated from Cash and
cash equivalent and TZS 1,576,705,647 emanated from receivable.

However, the Authority restated the Provisions balance for the year 2022/23 up to TZ5
1,950,940,525, whereby TZS 195,314,963 was from Cash and cash equivalent and TZS
1,755,625,562 was from the receivable balances as per the new standard (IPSAS 41) requirement
that was adopted retrospectively.

<) Deferred Income

During the period under review, there was a remaining amount of TZS 1,538,293,933 for
development and recurrent fund deferred to the next financial year to carry out the intended
purposes, while TZS 3,885,585,686 was for the previous years of 2022/23. The deferred income
balances are for IGA Funds and construction projects that are ongoing in VETA Centres.

d) Deposits

During the period under review there was a remaining amount of TZS 1,420,020,723 committed
for development activities for projects (Construction of different Vocational Centres and

"Controlier and Auditor General  AR/PA/VETA/2023/24
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rehabilitation of workshops) that were not budgeted for, to be carried forward to next financial
year, while TZS 4,106,654,266 was for the previous year 2022/23.

2.17.6 FUND BALANCE/EQUITY
a) Taxpayers/Share Capital

As at 30 June 2024, the Authority had a taxpayers’ fund of TZS 128,859,816,445, which
remained the same in the current and audited financial year 2022/23.

b) Accumulated Surplus/Deficit

During the year 2023/24 the balance is TZS 157,598,247,648 whereas for the year ended 30
June 2023, the audited accumulated fund was TZS 159,424,776,552.

The Authority restated the balance figure to TZS 159,503,398,002 in the year of comparison,
this resulted from the adjustments made to recognise asset value and reflect the actual
receivable balances after reconciliation.

2.18  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
2.18.1 REVENUE

a) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions, including transfers during the year, was TZS
95,604,451,685, while during the previous year, it was TZS 103,939,064,159. Revenue for the
year includes SDL, Grants (Development projects and training programs), Fair value gains on
Assets and Liabilities, as well as other revenues. The decrease in revenue was attributed by
unreceived SDL from government during the year for month of April to June 2024

b) Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions during the year was TZS 16,113,735,034, while for the
audited previous year, it was TZS 14,230,540,528. Revenue for the year includes short courses,
IGA income and income from tender. The increase of revenue is attributed to an increase in
the number of trainees in short courses and tailor-made courses during the year.

2.18.2 EXPENSES

a) Wages, salaries and employee benefits

During the year under review, Wages, Salaries and other benefits were TZ5 45,747,433,012
while the audited previous year balance was TZS 38,262,229,544. The increase was due to
recruitments of new staffs, recruitment expenses, increase of atlowance rates such as extra
duty and per diem, transfer benefits and medical expenses,
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Authority restated the balance figure to TZS 38,116,252,969 in the year of comparison, The
decrease was due to the recognition of other expenses that were included in staff-related costs,
hence leading to a decrease in wages, salaries and employee benefits expenses.

b) Amortization of intangible Assets

During the year, Amortization of Intangible assets was TZS 77,059,473, while audited the
previous year balance was TZS 3,825,439, The increase was due to the purchase of computer
software for computers and computer gadgets and licenses with regard to access and use T
services.

However, The Authority restated the balance figure to TZS 78,067,466 in the year of
comparison, the increase was due to the recognition of the amortization figure that was
included as a depreciation expense.

c) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment’s

During the year depreciation of PPE was TZS 11,251,407,309 while audited previous year was
T759,629,411,071. The increase is due to acquisition of new assets for instance, motor vehicles,
hardware (Desktops and Laptops) and capitalisation of buildings.

However, the Authority restated the balance figure to TZS 10,062,649,984 in the year of
comparison, the increase was due to recognition of depreciation of assets that were adjusted
retrospectively.

d) Maintenance expenses

During the year maintenance expenses was TZS 2,068,594,328 while the audited previous year
was TZS 3,320,308,613 the decrease was a result of fewer maintenance activities done in
accordance to availability of funds.

The Authority restated the balance figure to TZS 3,219,994,150 in the year of comparison, the
decrease was due to adjustment of maintenance expenses into the proper General Ledger.

e} Other Expenses

During the year other expenses were TZS 2,660,594,978 while audited previous year was TZS
3,659,001, 170 the decrease is due to completion of construction projects (25 DVTCs) that lead
to reduction of consultancy fees and National Expenses.

The Authority restated the balance figure to TZS 3,470,854,978 in the year of comparison, the
decrease was due to adjustment of other expenses into proper GL.

f) Use of Goods and Services

During the year, expenses for the use of goods and services were TZ5 50,818,247,973 while
audited previous year was TZS 41,427,515,231 The increase is due to cost on printing of
examination and servicing of ICT facilities, cost of contract-based expenditure and some non-
monetary expenditures.

' Controiler and Auditor General _ AR/PA/VETA/2023/24

19 |



~ VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

The Authority restated the balance figure to TZS 44,245,499,350 in the year of comparison, the
increase was due to recognition and adjustments of items on food and refreshment,
accommodation and on contract-based training all under the use of Goods and Services.

g) Other Transfers

During the year the use of other transfers was TZS 1,000,000,000 while previous year was TZS
200,000,0000 the increase was due to increase of VETA contribution to Central Fund and
transfer to NACTVET in the previous year was 200,000,000 to Central Fund

h) Surplus/Deficit for the year

Deficit for the year 2023/24 was TZS 1,905,150,354 while in the audited previous year the
Authority earned surplus amounting to TZS 18,493,316,726. The deficit was due to
reorganisation of depreciation and accrued expenses in the year under review.

The Authority restated the balance figure to TZS 16,825,345,265 in the year of comparison, the
decrease was due to recognition of expenses regarding depreciation of PPE, amortization and
expenses with regard to use of goods and services in the previous year.

2.19  CASH FLOW STATEMENT
During the period under review, amount received and used were as follows;
2.19.1 Cash flow from Operating Activities

Net Cash flow from operating activities was TZS 1,760,767,231 after considering receipt and
payments from operating activities resulting from normal Authority operations, while for the
previous year, it was TZS 25,986,419,930

2.19.2  Cash flow from Investing Activities

During the period under review, Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities was TZS
9,266,303,486 of which were attributed to acquisition of property, plant and equipment TZS5
3,968,745,941 Intangible asset TZS 168,500,000 and Work in Progress of TZ5 5,129,057,545
advance payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment TZS 5,374,310 while for the
previous year, the Net Cash Outflow was TZS 32,516,428,329

2.19.3 Cash flow from Financing Activities
There were no Financing activities during the period under review.
2.20 STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL

The Vocational Education and Training Authority’s original budget for the year under review
was TZS 96,934,876,453, and the final budget was TZS 104,899,710,341, while the Actual
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Receipts for the year under review was TZS 99,382,446,394 and Actual payment for the year
under review was TZS 114,707,564,575

2.20.1 Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits

The final budget for Employee’s compensation for the financial year 2023/24 was TZS
45,201,553,614, equals to 43% of total budget, while the actual expenditure as at 30 June 2024
was TZS 43,755,986,167 also equal to 37% of total expenditure. Variation was due to staff
emoluments that were not paid by the year-end June 2024, hence booked as staff claims.

2.20.2 Other Charges {OC)

The Final Budget amount of OC was TZS 56,280,690,278, which is equal to 53.7% of total budget
and the actual amount TZS 53,865,692,996. for Maintenance, Other expenses and cost for use
of goods or services which is equal to 42% of total actual expenditure.

2.20.3 Capital and Development (CAPEX)

Final budget for capital and development was TZS 3,417,466,449 equals to 3.3% of totat budget
during the year ended 30 June 2024 and the actual expenditure was TZS 9,266,303,486 which
is equal to four percent of total actual expenditure.

2.21 RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The VET Board assumes ultimate responsibility for VETA's risk management and internal controt
systems. Management is tasked with ensuring that effective internal financial and operational
controls are continuousty developed and maintained to provide reasonable assurance regarding:

The effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

The safeguarding of VETA's assets;

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

The reliability of accounting records;

Business sustainability under both normal and adverse conditions; and
Responsible behavior towards all stakeholders.

The effectiveness of any internal control system relies on strict adherence to prescribed
measures, with a risk of non-compliance by staff always present. While no internal control
system can guarantee absolute protection against misstatements or losses, VETA's system is
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the implemented procedures are functioning
effectively. VETA evaluated its internal control systems throughout the financial year ending
30 June 2024 and believes they met the accepted standards.

VETA conducts risk and internal control assessments through the Audit Committee. The key
elements of the internal control system are as follows:
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a) Delegation

The overall objectives of VETA are established by the VET Board, which delegates the execution
of daily operations to Management. A clear organizational structure is in place, outlining the
lines of authority.

b) Budgets

Management prepares detailed annual budgets, which are reviewed by the Planning and Finance
Committee of the VET Board and subsequently approved by the VET Board. These annual
budgets are based on the VETA Corporate Plan.

¢} Competence

Staff skills are maintained through a formal recruitment process and a performance appraisat
system that identifies training needs. Additionally, both in-house and external training are
provided to further develop and strengthen the skills and competencies of existing staff.

d) Internal audit

The internal audit unit evaluates risks and reviews control measures, ensuring that management
follows up on recommendations for improvement. The Chief Internal Auditor reports
functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the Director General

e) Appropriation of reserves/surplus

VETA is a non-profit public institution; therefore, it does not declare dividends. According to
its Corporate Plan, any surplus generated is allocated to fund VETA's future activities.

2,22  GENDER PARITY

VETA is an equal opportunity employer, providing equal access to employment opportunities
and ensuring that the most qualified individuals are appointed to paositions without
discrimination of any kind. Factors such as gender, marital status, ethnicity, religion, or
disabitity when it does not affect the ability to perform duties are not considered in the hiring
process. As at 30 June 2024, and 2023, VETA employed 1,690 and 1,518 staff members,
respectively, with the following gender distribution.

Tabfe 8: Number of VETA staffs

Gender ] 2023/24 | 2022/23
Female 554 465
Male 1,136 1,053
Total 1,690 1,518

' Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 . 92




VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2.23  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions and balances, including directors’ emoluments, are disclosed in
Note 26 of these financial statements.

2,24  ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of key accounting policies is in Note 6 to the financial statements.

2.25 EMPLOYEES WELFARE
a) Relationship between Management and Employees

The relationship between employees and management remained positive throughout the
accounting period. The Workers/Management Negotiation Council operated smoothly, and
employees, through the Master Workers Council, were actively involved in the planning and
evaluation of the Authority's objective

b) Employees Benefit

The Authority currently provides retirement benefits to its employees in accordance with
government circulars, rules, and regutations as outlined in the contribution plans. This approach
follows the suspension of the voluntary Collective Bargaining Agreement.

c) Staff Development

The Authority has 446 employees (280 men and 166 women) currently pursuing long-term
training programs at the Diploma, Degree, and Master’s Degree levels at various colleges and
training institutions across the country. Additionally, 211 employees (145 men and 66 women)
were supported in undertaking short courses relevant to their professional fields. Several in-
house training sessions were also conducted, focusing on information technology and public
relations.

d) Medical assistance

All staff members, along with up to four dependents each, were provided with medical
insurance, with the employer contributing 3 percent of the employee’s basic salary. These
services are currently offered through the NHIF. Additionally, any medical needs not covered
by the insurance are addressed in accordance with the VETA Medical Policy of 2015.

e) Trade Union

A strong and positive relationship continues to thrive between management, staff, and the
Researchers, Academicians, and Allied Workers Union (RAAWU).

f) HIV in Place of Work

The Authority is proactive in addressing HIV-related issues. HIV is a standing agenda item in
every departmental meeting. Additionally, seminars are conducted at both the Head Office and
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regional levels to address these concerns. HIV education is also integrated into the students’
training curriculum.

g) Financial assistance to staff

This benefit is available to all confirmed employees, subject to Management's assessment of
need and circumstances, as well as the employee's ability to make payments in accordance with
existing VETA Staff and Financial Regulations. Management has also encouraged staff to
establish and join the Savings and Credit Co-operative Society (SACCOS) to help promote
employee welfare.

h} Persons with disabilities

VETA's policy is to ensure non-discrimination against individuals with disabilities in the
recruitment process.

2.26  LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

VETA is an autonomous regulatory body overseeing the vocational education and training (VET)
profession in Tanzania. It reports to the Ministry of Education and Vocational Training and is
required to adhere to government procedures and national laws, During the year under review,
VETA fully complied with all applicable laws.

2.27  PREJUDICIAL ISSUES

VETA faces several challenges, including prolonged acting appointments in higher-level
leadership positions, a static budget ceiling, and a significant number of vacant positions for
both permanent and short-term workers due to the increase in the number of District Yocational
Centres (DVTCs) and trades. Additionally, outdated or worn-out training equipment,
particularly in older Vocational Centres (RVTSCs and VTCs), and stringent restrictions and
conditions imposed by guarantors also present significant obstacles.

2.28  REGISTERED OFFICE

During the year ending 30 June 2024, the Authority operated from its main registered office
located at Plot No. 18, Central Business Park (CPB), YVETA Road, Dodoma

2,29  BANKERS

The Authority’s Bankers are Bank of Tanzania (BOT), CRDB Bank Ltd, NBC (T), TCB, and NMB.
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2.30 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Controller and Auditor General is the Statutory Auditor of the Vocational Education and
Training Authority (VETA) by virtue of Article 143 of the Constitution of the United Republic of
Tanzania as amplified under Section 32 (1) of the Public Audit Act Cap 418.

By order of the VET Board

PRoe gitun Mo

Chairman

Cip P Ty - M- P RF

Director General Signature

| Controller and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

3.0 STATEMENT OF VET BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

The Board is required under Section 24 of the VET Act CAP 82 R.E 2006 to prepare and submit
to the Minister a report on the activities and operations of the Authority together with the
audited accounts for each financial peried that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Authority at the end of the financial period and of its income and expenditure for that
period.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Authority and which enable them
to ensure that the financial statements comply with the VET Act CAP 82 R.E 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Authority and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and other irregularities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
receipts and payments during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
Directors’ best knowledge of current events and conditions, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

The Directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently
and reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates have been made in the preparation of the
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024. The Directors also confirm that
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) have been foilowed and that financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

-
Ve Sifum e =

Chairman Signature Date
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

4.0 DECLARATION OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND
TRAINING AUTHORITY

The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under
the Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of
1995, requires Financial Statements to be accompanied with a declaration issued by the Head
of Finance/Accounting responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the entity
concerned.

It is the duty of a Professional Accountant to assist the Board of Directors/Governing
Body/Management to discharge the responsibility of preparing financial statements of an entity
showing true and fair view of the entity position and performance in accordance with applicable
International Accounting Standards and statutory financial reporting requirements. Full legal
responsibility for the preparation of financial statements rests with the Board of
Directors/Governing Body as under the Directors Responsibility statement on an earlier page.

| CPA. Fidelis Tungu, being the Head of Finance/Accounting of Vocational Education and
Training Authority, hereby acknowledges my responsibility of ensuring that financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024 have been prepared in compliance with applicable accounting
standards and statutory requirements.

| thus confirm that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the position of
Vocational Education and Training Authority as on that date and that they have been prepared
based on properly maintained financial records.

A TUNAL

L |

Signed by: FI AZLJ ¢~
Position: Acting Director of Finance

NBAA Membership No.: ﬁ@f/:}’ééﬁzr‘

Date:

| Controller and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

5.0  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

2023724 2022/23
Current Asset Notes TZS TZS
Restated
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 4,228,893,737 11,667,423,517
fnventories 2 680,443,014 617,182,939
Prepayments 4 14,352,921 29,367,326
Receivables 5 280,847,714 971,244,036
Total Current Asset 5,204,537,386 13,285,217,818
Non-Current Asset -
Intangibie Assets ) 213,157,801 34,526,947
Property, Plant and Equipment 7 280,629,020,027 205,337,584,336
Work In Progress 8 11,513,293,204 79,160,918,194
Total Non-Current Asset 292,355,471,032 284,533,029,477
TOTAL ASSETS 297,560,008,418 297,818,247,295
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Deferred Income 9 1,538,293,933 3,885,585,686
Deposits 10 1,420,020,723 4,106,654,266
Payables and Accruals 11 8,143,629,669 1,462,792,896

Total Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Assets

NET ASSETS/EQUITY
Capital Contributed by:
Taxpayers/Share Capital
Accumutated Surplus
TOTAL NET ASSETS/EQUITY

11,101,944,325

11,101,944,325
286,458,064,093

128,859,816,445
157,598,247,648
286,458,064,093

9,455,032,848

9,455,032,848
288,363,214,447

128,859,816,445
159,503,398,002
288,363,214,447

.......................................

PR < EUT B M ChrdE
Chairman /’S/ig',;;tu re
CiPr Pty M KPR AE,

Director General

Signature Date
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Other Revenue

Fair value Gains on Assets and Liabilities
Subvention from other Government
entities

Total Revenue from Non-Exchange
transaction

TOTAL REVENUE &REVENUE GRANTS

EXPENSES AND TRANSFER
Expenses

Amortization of Intangible Assets
Deprecation of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Maintenance Expenses

Other Expenses

Expected Credit Loss

Use of Goods and Service

Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits
Total Expenses

Other Transfer

Transfer

TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFER

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
Peac-Lrram € Mome

Chairman

CER PiNTHoRY - M- KA AE

Director General

Notes

13

14
15
16

18
19

20
21
22
23
24

34

Signature

2023/24
TZS

16,113,735,034

3,873,649,328
245,926,386
91,484,875,971

95,604,451,685

111,718,186,719

77,059,473
11,251,407,309

2,068,594,328
2,660,594,978

50,818,247,973
45,747,433,012
112,623,337,073
1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000
113,623,337,073

(1,905,150,354)

2022/23

TZS

Restated
14,230,540,528

2,376,050,966
0
101,563,013,193

103,939,064,159

118,169,604,687

78,067,466
10,062,649,984

3,219,994,150
3,470,854,978
1,950,940,525
44,245,499,350
38,116,252,969
101,144,259,422
200,000,000
200,000,000
101,344,259,422

16,825,345,265

AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 | 39 |
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Subvention from other Government entities
Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Other Revenue

Levies

Total Receipts

PAYMENTS

Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits

Use of Goods and Service

Other Transfers

Other Expenses

Maintenance Expenses

Decrease in Deposit

Total Payments

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

investing Activities

Payment for Work in Progress

Advance Payment for Acquisition of Property Plant and
Equipment

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment
Acquisition of Intangibles

Total Investing Activities

NET CASH OUT FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Financing Activities
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net decrease

Cash surrendered to Holding account

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalent at end of period

R SIEan B MG ME

Chairman

COD oy - M- IO AE

Director General

Signature

Signature

Notes
27
29
30
31

32
33
34
35
36
37

39
38

o~

(A+B+C)

2023/24

TZS
79,247,605,059
16,113,735,034

4,021,106,301

99,382,446,394

(43,755,986,167)
(45,307,476,666)
(1,000,000,000)
(2,757,701,666)
(2,068,594,328)
(2,731,920,336)
(97,621,679,163)
1,760,767,231

{5,129,057,545)
(5,374,310}

(3,963,371,631)

(168,500,000}
(9,266,303,486)
(9,266,303,486}

0
0
(7,505,536,255)

11,862,738,482
4,357,202,227

....................

2022/23
Restated
TZS

97,955,431,471
14,342,920,813
2,406,262,291
2,950,000
114,707,564,575

(37,923,645,150)
(42,839,073,436)
(200,000,000)
(3,547,663,279)
(3,219,994,150)
(1,190,568,630)
(88,821,144,645)
25,786,619,930

(14,712,524,645)

(17,803,903,684)
{32,516,428,329)
(32,516,428,329)
0

0
{6,729,808,399)

18,592,546,881
11,862,738,482

i Controllerr and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

6.0 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2024
6.1  GENERAL INFORMATION

The Vocational Education and Training Board (VET Board) is pleased to present its financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2024, which disclose the state of affairs of VETA. The
financial statements presented have been prepared in accordance with International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) and Tanzania Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS 1), on
the report from the Governing Board as per Vocational Education and Training Act CAP 82 R.E
2006.

6.2  STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The adoption of IPSAS has resulted in changes to the Authority’s accounting policies.
TFRS 1 The Report by those charged with governance has no equivalent to IPSAS

The Authority has applied TFRS 1, except for the parts referring to as related party
transactions, which it has deemed to be superseded by IPSAS No. 20 Related Party
Disclosures.

6.3  Adoption of International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)
Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the current period

VETA Accounting Policy have been amended to comply with IPSAS requirements as per issued
Treasury Circular No.12 of 2014/15, which required all public entity other than business entity
to migrate from IFRS to IPSAS Accrual basis reporting.

Early adoption of standards
APPLICATION OF REVISED USEFUL LIFE

During the financial year 2023/24, the Authority complied with the directives issued by
Permanent Secretary in the new issued Public Finance (Management of Public Property)
Regulations, 2024 on the use of revised estimated useful life for public assets. As a result of
change in accounting estimates, the depreciation expense of the asset classes was lowered due
to the extension of useful life of the classes.

The revised estimated useful life has been applied prospectively by including it in surplus or
deficit. To the extent that a change in an accounting estimate has gives rise to changes in assets
and liabilities, or relates to an item of net assets/equity, it has been recognized by adjusting
the carrying amount of the related asset, liability, or net assets/equity item in the period of
change.

A change in an accounting estimate have affected only the current period’s surplus or deficit,
or the surplus or deficit of both the current period and future periods.

[ Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 | 35 |
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The introduction of IPSAS 41 substantially modifies IPSAS 29 by classifying financial assets and
liabilities through a principles-based classification model, a forward-looking expected credit
loss modet.

THE IMPACT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The impact of introducing IPSAS 41 is the emergence of Expected credit loss /gain in the
Financial Statements by having different Cash and Cash Equivalent figures reported in the
Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Cash flows with Exposure at Default {(EAD)
(Balance) at the end of the financial year.

The Entity operates with the following Banks with global ratings and Probability of Default (PD)
as provided in the table below.

No | Name of the Bank Rating Agency | Score . Probability of Default (PD)

1. | CRDB BANK PLC . Moody’s . B2 2.16%
Description . Cash And Bank  Accumulated Reason

- Balance . Surplus | )

Financial Year 2022/23 . 11,862,738,480 )

. Expected Credit Loss 195,314,963.31 ¢ . Change in Accounting Policy

. Restated Balance ©11,667,423,517 - Change in Accounting Policy

6.4 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with
International Public Accounting Standards (IPSASs), continuing Tanzania Financial Reporting
Standards (TFRSs) 1 on Directors Report and the Vocational Education and Training Act 1994
R.E 2006 CAP 82. The Financial Statements are presented in Tanzanian Shillings. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The financial statements are
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless otherwise indicated in this summary of
significant accounting policies. The Cash Flow Statement is prepared using direct method.

6.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of previous year in accordance with
[PSASs Accrual Basis as explained below: -

a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems inciuded in the financial statements of the Entity are measured using the primary
economic environment in which it operates. That is to say, the functional currency used is
Tanzanian shitlings {TZS), and the presentational currency is Tanzanian shillings. Thus, these
financial statements are presented in Tanzanian Shilling (TZ5).

| Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

b) Translation of transactions in foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions have been translated into Tanzanian Shillings using prevailing
exchange rates of the dates of the transactions.

¢) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position and statement of cash flows
comprised the net cash at bank for recurrent expenditure, own source collection and Deposits
accounts only.

d) Employment benefits

Employees’ benefits include salaries, gratuities, and health insurance for local staff and other
related - employment costs which are recognized on the date of occurrence.

e) Financial Instruments Recognition

The Entity recognises financial instruments when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions.

6.6 Financial Assets

6.6.1 Initial and Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured as per following

criteria:

The management model within which the Financial Asset is held.
The characteristics of contractual cash flows are solely payments of Principal and Interest.

6.6.2 Classification of Financial Assets
Classification is based on the criteria mentioned above, as a result the fotlowing classes of

financial instruments arise namely;

Financial assets at Amortized Cost,
Financial asset at Fair Value through Net asset/ Equity, and
Financial asset at Fair Value through Surplus or Deficit.

6.6.3 Financial Assets at Amortized cost

Financial Assets are subsequently measured at Amortized Cost if both of the following
conditions are met;

The financial asset is held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial
assets to collect contractual cash flow; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding this includes Cash
and Cash equivalent.

“Controller and Auditor General )  AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 | 37 |
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

6.6.4 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Net Assets/Equity

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through net assets or equity if both of
the following conditions are met;

The financial asset is held within management model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

The contractual terms of financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

6.6.5 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Surplus/Deficit

Financial Assets are subsequently measured at Fair Value through Surplus /Deficit unless they
are measured at amortized costs or fair values through net assets/equity based on conditions
mentioned above.

6.6.6 Impairment of financial assets

The impairment of financial asset is calculated using expected credit losses model. The Entity
recognizes loss allowances {Expected Credit Losses (ECL)} on all financial assets except those
that are measured at FYTSD and credit impaired financial assets. The Entity uses the Simplified
approach in determining the impairment of trade receivables, staff debtors and student
debtors. A loss allowance is calculated at each reporting date however, the ECL model is
updated on an annually basis to accommodate any event that might cause significant increase
in credit risks on financial asset. The term ‘expected credit loss’ does not imply that losses are
anticipated, rather that there is recognition of the potential risk of lass. Determining whether
an expected credit loss should be based on 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
of the financial asset since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of
the assets;

Inputs into measurement of ECLs

The key inputs into the measurement of ECLs are the discounted product of: probability of
default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD).

.The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per
"Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or
over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

EAD is based on the amounts the Entity expects to be owed at the time of default, over the
next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD), Loss Given Default
(LGD) represents the Bank's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD

| Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 33
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varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of cotlateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default
(EAD).

LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of
loss expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the
percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected
lifetime of the loan.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for each
individual exposure or collective segment. These three components are multiplied together and
adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an
earlier month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
calculation is the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof. The Lifetime PD
is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12-month PD. The maturity profile
looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout
the lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is
assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band.

This is supported by historical analysis.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

2023/24 2022/23
TZS T8
Cash at Bank and in hand 4,357,202,229 11,862,738,482
Expected Credit Loss: - -
Opening 195,314,963 -
Charged during the year (67,006,471} 195,314,963
Closing (FP) 128,308,492 195,314,963
Cash as per Statement of Net Asset 4,228,893,737 11,667,423,517

Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent comprises of the
following balances with less than twelve (12) months maturity from the date of acquisition

2023/24 2022/23
TS TZS
Cash as per Statement of Financial Position 4,228,893,738.86 11,667,423,517.2
Expected Credit Loss 128,308,491.86 195,314,963.3
Gross Cash and Cash Equivalent 4,357,202,230.72 11,862,738,482

Moreover, the Entity operates with CRDB Bank with current global ratings of B+ from Fitch and
B2 from Moody’s, which gives Probability of Default (PD) of 0.0216.
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RECEIVABLES
2023/24 2022/23
TZS TZS
Receivables 1,636,616,561 1,784,073,534
Expected Credit i _
Loss:
Opening 1,755,625,562
Sgs:ged during the (178,919,915) 1,755,625,562
Closing (FP) 1,576,705,647 1,755,625,562
Net Receivables 59,910,914 28,447,972

Derecognition financial assets

The Entity derecognizes a financial asset when:
The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or
It transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:

Substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial are transferred; or

The Entity neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

When The Entity enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in itsstatement
of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. in these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

Recognition

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Entity has a contractual obligation to deliver cash
as a result of goods or services received.

Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognized in surplus or deficit. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in surplus or deficit. Any gain or Loss on
derecognition is also recognized in surplus or deficit.
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Derecognition

The Entity derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations aredischarged or
cancelled, or expire. The Entity also derecegnizes a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the madified liability are substantially different, in which case
a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognized in surplus or deficit

6.7 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES, AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements of every financial year requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities to be affected in the future.

The figures of Property Plant and Equipment have been affected by the estimates of useful life
to non-current assets and judgement on method for depreciation calculation.

Impairment of Cash batances in Bank, Student debtors and Staff debtors. The Entity reviews its
financial assets measured at amortized cost at each reporting date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be recognized in surplus or deficit. In particular, judgment by the Entity
Management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the level of impairment loss required. Such estimates are based on assumptions
about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes in the
impairment. The Entity makes a judgment as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows in an individual asset in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the rating outcome or national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on assets. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce
any differences between loss estimates and actual loss incurred.

Defauit. This is a situation where the debtor fails to meet the contractual obligation. The
management classifies its financial assets into three categories namely: Trade debtors, Student
debtors and Staff debtors and set a default assumption for each of the categories. For trade
debtors is above 60 days, for staff debtors is above 730 days and for student debtors is above
365 days for long course students and above 180 days for short course students.
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6.8 FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

No Standards issued and yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Ministry’s financiat
statements that the Entity reasonably expects to have an impact on disclosures, financial
position or performance when applied soon. The Entity assesses and intends to adopt these
standards when they become effective.

IPSAS 43 - Leases: IPSASB approved IPSAS 43, Leases with an effective date of January 1, 2025.
IPSAS 43 supersedes IPSAS 13, Leases and introduces the right-of-use model for lessees, aligning
with IFRS 16, Leases. The IPSASB will continue consideration of public sector specific leasing
issues, such as concessionary leases, in its Other Lease-Type Arrangements project. The entity
is currently assessing the impact of the standard.

IPSAS 44- Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: In May 2022 [PSASB
issued IPSAS 44 that specifies the accounting for assets held for sale and the presentation of
discontinued operations. It requires assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for
sale to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and
depreciation on such assets to cease; and presented separately in the statement of financial
position and results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the Statement of
financial performance. IPSAS 44 will be effective for periods beginning on or after January 1,
2025.

IPSAS 45 - Property, Plant and Equipment: This standard provides guidance on accounting for
Property, Plant and Equipment so that users of Financial Statements can discern information
about an entity’s investment in its PPE and the changes in such investment. The standard
applies to PPE used to develop or maintain the biological assets related to agricultural activity
other than bearer plants, Mineral rights and mineral reserves such as oil, natural gas and similar
non-regenerative resources and the recognition and measurement of exploration and evaluation
assets. IPSAS 45 removed IPSAS 17’s scope exclusion of Heritage Asset. This standard will be
effective on 1 January 2025 with earlier application permitted

IPSAS 46- Measurement. The objective of this Standard is to define measurement bases that
assist in reflecting fairly the cost of services, operational capacity and financial capacity of
assets and Habilities. The Standard identifies approaches under those measurement bases to be
applied through individual IPSAS to achieve the objectives of financial reporting. An entity that
prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting shall apply
IPSAS 46, Measurement in measuring assets and liabilities. The measurement requirements
described in this Standard apply to both initial and subsequent measurement, unless specific
guidance is included in the individual IPSAS. IPSAS 46 will be effective for periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2025.

IPSAS 47- Revenue.

IPSAS 47 is a single source for revenue accounting guidance in the public sector, which presents
two accounting models based on the existence of a binding arrangement. This new Standard
provides focused guidance to help entities apply the principles to account for public sector
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revenue transactions. IPSAS 47 is a single source for revenue accounting guidance in the public
sector, which presents two accounting models based on the existence of a binding arrangement.
This new Standard provides focused guidance to help entities apply the principles to account
for public sector revenue transactions. To meet this objective requires an entity to consider
the terms of the transaction, and all relevant facts and circumstances, to determine the type
of revenue transaction and set out the accounting requirements to account for the revenue
transaction. IPSAS 47 will be effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026

IPSAS 48: Transfer Expenses. The objective of this standard is to establish the principles that
a transfer provider (an entity) shall apply to report useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of expenses and cash flow arising
from transfer expense transactions. In order to meet the objective, This Standard requires an
entity to consider the terms of the transaction and all relevant facts and circumstances to
determine the type of transfer expense transaction and sets out the accounting requirements
for the transfer expense transaction. IPSAS 48 will be effective for periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2026.

IPSAS 49: Retirement Benefit Plans. The objective of this standard is to prescribe the
accounting and reporting requirements for public sector retirement benefit plans, which
provide retirement benefits to public sector employees and other eligible participants. IPSAS
49 will be effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026.

IFRS S1: The objective of IFRS $1 (General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability related
Financial Information) is to require an entity to disclose information about its sustainability-
related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general-purpose financial
reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity. The Standard requires
an entity to disclose information about all sustainability-related risks and opportunities that
could reasonably be expected to affect the entity’s cash flows, its access to finance or cost of
capital over the short, medium or long term. This Standard also prescribes how an entity
prepares and reports its sustainability-related financial disclosures. It sets out general
requirements for the content and presentation of those disclosures so that the information
disclosed is useful to primary users in making decisions relating to providing resources to the
entity.

IFRS $2: The objective of IFRS S2 (Climate-related Disclosures) is to require an entity to disclose
information about its climate-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of
general-purpose financial reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the
entity. The Standard requires an entity to disclose information about climate-related risks and
opportunities that could reasonably be expected to affect the entity’s cash flows, its access to
finance or cost of capital over the short, medium or long term. Climate-related risks to which
the entity is exposed includes climate-related physical risks and climate-related transition,
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EXCHANGE RATES

All monetary amounts in the financial statements are expressed in Tanzanian Shillings and the
closing exchange rates as per the Bank of Tanzania for major currencies were as scheduled
below:

 Currency 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
"United States Dollar (USD) B 2,626.9307 2,327.5203

However, exchange rates for the transactions were exchange rates as per Bank of Tanzania for
major currencies on the date of transactions.

RISKS MANAGEMENT

The Entity comprises several financial and operational risks, hazards, and strategic risks, hence
it is responsible for ensuring appropriate risk management strategies and policies are in place
within any mandate provided by legislation with assistance from the parent ministry.

Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk refers to exchange loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange
rates.

Liquidity risk

The Entity failed to settle some liabilities due to delay on funds release. Then, the Entity has
considered unsettled liabilities worth TZS 8,434,290,547 in the forthcoming financial year
budget by continuing to dialogue with the Ministry for timely release of funds as per approved
budget.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the loss due to the non-performance by counterparties to discharge an
obligation. The Entity is subjected to risk of untimely recovered staff debts, student debts as
well its balances of Cash in the Banks.

Total Cash in the Banks to which the Entity is exposed to credit risk as of 30 June 2024 with its
comparative figures are presented in the table below according to the classification of assets
(classification according to external credit rating is done based on credit ratings published by
Standard and Poor’s)

Ratings )
| Description 2023724 2022/23
CRDB BANK i B2 B2
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Credit quality

Credit quality per class of financial assets. The table below shows the quality by class of asset
for all financial assets exposed to credit risk, based on the Entity’s credit rating system. The
amount presented is gross of impairment allowances.

Description Stage 1 Stage 2 | Stage 3 | Total “
Cash & Cash Equivalent 7,334,111,004.17 N/A N/A | 7,334,111,004.17
Total 7,334,111,004.17 . 7,334,111,004.17 |
30 June 2023
Description Stage 1 . Stage2 | Stage3 Total
' Cash & Cash Equivalent 13,692,418,958.85 | N/A N/A - 13,692,418,958.85
 Total 13,692,418,958.85 : 13,692,418,958.85

Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance between the previous period and
the current reporting period due to changes in credit risk factors:

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

_Description Stage 1 . Stage2 ~ Stage3
- Loss Allowance as at 30 June 2023 195,314,963.31 N/A N/A
New Financial Assets Originated/Purchased | - N/A : N/A
i Financial Asset derecognized (67,006,471.45) N/A ‘ N/A
_ Change in risk parameters - N/A N/A
" Loss Allowance as at 30 June 2024 128,308,491.86 1  N/A N/A

6.9 RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

The Entity restated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 for adjusting
overstated accumulated surplus, surplus/deficit and cash and cash equivalent to reflect the
reality of cash flows and performance in the respective year accordingly. This has been further
explained in Note 43,

7.0 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

7.1 Consolidation of VETA Centres Controlied Centres

The controlled Centres are all those Centres over which the Authority has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies. The controlled Centres are those Centres, that were
transferred to VETA from NVTD or are currently in establishment. Inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between members of the Centres are
eliminated in full uniess otherwise. The accounting policies of the controlled Centres are
consistent with the policies adopted by the Authority.

1 Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/NETA/2023/24
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7.1.1 Revenue Recognition

Principal income comprises Skills Development Levy, School Fees, Self-Reliance Activities and
Rental Income, Recognition bases are as follows:

a) Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

The Authority recognizes revenues from Skills Development levy (SDL), Government
Counterpart Funds, revenue grants, rental from facilities and long course fees when the event
occurs and the asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that any unutilized funds during
the reporting period would give rise to a liability to be released and matched with next period
expenses, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are
recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the asset will flow to the entity and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

b)  Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Fees - Revenue from short courses is recognized at the commencement of the course, whereas
revenue from long courses is recognized systematically in proportion to the period of
instruction.

Other Services - Sales of other services are recognized in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered by reference to the stage of completion of the specific transaction,
assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total service to be
provided.

Other Incomes- Recognized on an accrual basis when earned
7.1.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost, which comprises
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the income statement during the financial peried in which they are incurred.

Subsequently, items of property, plant and equipment are stated at replacement cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis and is calculated separately for each part of
an item of property, plant and eqguipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item. Applicable depreciation rates are as follows:

L'Controiler and Auditor General
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Particulars Years
Land N/A
Buildings 50
Plants and Machinery {Including: Excavator, Tractor and 15
Generators, Industrial plant and Machinery)

Furniture, Fittings and Office Equipment 10
Motor Vehicles- light duty 10
Motor Vehicle -Heavy Duty 20
Motorcycles 7
Boat 25
Computers {Desktop, laptops, tables etc) 8
Scientific equipment 10
Computer software 10
Library books 10
Agriculture and livestock extension systems 25
Biological Assets 50

{Measured at fair value
less cost to sell)

Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset or to the
date of the next major renovation, whichever is sooner. The assets’ residual values and useful
lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. No depreciation is
charged if the residual value of an item is equal to or greater than its carrying value.

The authority revised the economic useful life (EUL) of Non-current assets (PPE). Therefore,
PPE opening balances were adjusted.

During the year the Authority adjusted the value of PPE, which were previously physically
disposed of but not adjusted in the financial statement.

The Authority received non-current assets without value from the Kongwa district council,
therefore, were not included in the financial statement.

7.1.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the
intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset with a finite life
is amortized over its useful life.
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Intangible assets with a finite useful life are assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

The amortization peried and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on an intangible asset with a finite
life is recognized in surplus or deficit as the expense category that is consistent with the nature
of the intangible asset. Gains or losses arising from the de-recognition of an intangible asset
are measured. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognized.

7.2  Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The Authority assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-cash-
generating asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Authority estimates the asset’s recoverable service amount. An
asset’s recoverable service amount is the higher of the non-cash-generating asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable service amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable service amount.

7.2.1 Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. After initial recognition, inventory is
measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to the extent that a class of
inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory
is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange,
or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utitization or
consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Authority. Cost is determined using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method.

7.2.2  Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. When the Authority expects a
provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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7.2.3  Contingent liabilities

Authority does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in
the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service potential is Remote.

7.2.4 Employee benefits Retirement benefit plans

Following the suspension of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), the Authority currently
provides retirement benefits for its employees based on Government circulars, rules and
regulations as defined in the contributions plans which are post-employment benefit plans
under which an entity pays fixed contributions into separate funds (NSSF and PSSSF) and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefit relating to employee services in the current and
prior periods.

The contribution to fund obligation for the payment of retirement benefits is charged against
income in the year in which they become payable.

7.2.5 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on
the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are
reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate
on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors or from the
reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initialty recorded during
the period are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

7.2.6 Related parties

The Authority regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly or to exercise significant influence over the Authority or vice versa.
Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Board Members,
Director General, VET Board committee members, PS MoEST, VETA Directors and Centre
Principals and other senior managers, and close relatives of key management staff.

7.2.7 Budget information

The annual budget is prepared on an accrual basis; that is, all planned costs and income are
presented in a single statement to determine the needs of the Authority. As a result of the
adoption of the accrual basis for budgeting purposes, there are no basis, timing or entity
differences that would require reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and the
amounts presented as a separate additional financial statement in the statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts. Explanatory comments are provided in the notes to the annual
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financial statements; first, the reasons for overall growth or dectine in the budget are stated,
followed by details of overspending or underspending on line items.

The annual budget figures included in the financial statements are for the Authority. These
budget figures are those approved by the VET Board at the beginning of the financial year.

7.2.8  Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Authority's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in future periods.

7.2.9  Financial Risk Management
i}  Credit Risk

The Authority’s principal financial assets are cash and bank balances and trade and other
receivables. The Authority’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The
amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of atlowances for doubtful
receivables estimated by the management based on the long outstanding balances and the
assessment of the current economic environment.

i{)  Foreign Currency Risk

As a result of bank balances (favourable and unfavourable) denominated in foreign currency,
the Authority’s financial position and results can be affected by movement in exchange rates.
However, the Authority does not consider that there is a downside risk on holding foreign
currency balances arising from exchange rate movements; no specific financial risk
management measures have been initiated.

8.0 Disclosures

According to IPSAS 1 it is required that, the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year must
be disclosed.

a) Assets at Kagera RVTSC

Kagera RVTSC is one among VETA Centres located in Kagera Region within Lake Zone. The
Centre is a China-aided project built by the Shanxi Construction Investment Group Co. Ltd and
was completed then handed over to VETA in year 2022.
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The project included the acquisition of land, construction of buildings, acquisition and
installation of office and training tools, machines, equipment, furniture, and ICT infrastructure
worth of USD 10,413,275.09, equivalent to TZS 22 billion.

Para 14 {a} and (b} of IPSAS 17 stipulates recognition criteria of property, plant and equipment
shall be recognized as an asset if and only if “it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item flow to the entity and the cost of fair value of the
item can be measured reliably”

Up to the end of the reporting period, June 2024, VETA could not get the reliable value of each
class of asset that is situated in Kagera RVTSC since the handover documentation provided only
a lump sum figure without a breakdown of costs for each asset class. Hence, the disclosure has
been made as the value of the assets is material and to enhance proper information provision
as the amount is not in the Financial Statements of the Authority.

Furthermore, VETA is making follow-ups with the Ministry of Education Science and Technology
together with the Ministry of Finance so as to conclude the matter before June 2025.

b) Comparative Figures

The previous year's figures have been restated with some reclassified to match with the current
year’s presentation as per IPSAS’ requirements and Government directive on the preparation
of public entities financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
BOT Own source Collection
Account

Cash in hand

CRDB CASH ACCOUNT

Deposit

Deposit Cash Account
Development Expenditure Cash
Account

Imprest Cash Account

Own source Collection
Account -CRBB

Own source Development
Expenditure

Own source Recurrent Expenditure
GF

Provision for ECL {Cash)
Recurrent Expenditure Cash
Account

Unapplied Cash Account

USD Commercial Cotlection
Account

Sub Total

2 - Inventories
Agricuttural Chemical
Buitding Addition
Cleaning supplies
Consumables
Foodstuffs

Fuel

Learning Materials
{earning Materials Addition
Spare parts and tires
Uniforms

Sub Total

2023/24
TLS

1,282,435,366
1,910,000

687,019,579
788,337,715
344,625,843

240,559,166

617,110,222
(128,308,492}
141,267,023
163,423,239
90,514,076
4,228,893,737

15,259,181
8,400,626
450,782,153
102,288,548
27,291,655
47,080,319

5,792,100
23,548,432
680,443,014

2022/23
TZS
Restated

4,573,937,369

139,610,670
91,545
191,200
2,508,753,305

919,506,809
230,712,973
218,535,081

10,069,279

751,529,772
(195,314,963)
2,237,686,187
225,158,377
46,955,913
11,667,423,517

3,942,500
184,916,288
6,025,800
336,783,591
9,340,630
68,004,130
4,704,000

1,544,000
1,922,000
617,182,939
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4 - Prepayments

Prepayment Consumables
Prepayments Assets - Monetary
Sub Total

5 - Receivables
Imprest Receivable
Receivables services
QOther Staff receivables
Provision for ECL

Sub Total

9 - Deferred income
Deferred Subvention Capital
Deferred Subvention Current
Sub Total

10 - Deposits

Deposit General

Unapplied Deposit Account
Addition

Total

11 - Payables and Accruals
Other accounts payables
Retention Payable

Staff Claim Addition

Supplies of goods and services
Addition

VAT Payable

Withholding tax

Imprest payable addition
Total

13 - Revenue from Exchange
Transactions
Revenue from Annual

2023/24
TZS

8,978,611
5,374,310
14,352,921

220,936,800
885,847,759
750,768,802
{1,576,705,647)
280,847,714

357,027,969
1,181,265,964
1,538,293,933

1,256,597,484
163,423,239
1,420,020,723

267,803,514
65,796,307
2,195,158,787

5,189,703,126

8,668,000
79,784,371
336,715,564
8,143,629,669

2022723
TZS
Restated

19,367,326
0
29,367,326

942,796,064
942,049,523
842,024,011
(1,755,625,562)
971,244,036

1,142,571,240
2,743,014,446
3,885,585,686

3,881,495,889
225,158,377
4,106,654,266

364,910,203
88,439,700
203,711,942

724,640,613
600,000
80,490,438

1,462,792,896

- 1,180,000
Fees- Exchange
Revenue from Examination 245,135,000
Fees- Exchange
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

Revenue from Inspection
Fees- Exchange

Revenue from Yocational Workshop

Production- Exchange

Vocational Short and Tailor-made
course fees- Exchange

Sub Total

14 - Other Revenue

Praducts made at vocational school

Application fee

Miscellaneous Revenue
Recovery of Public Money
Revenue from Examination Fees

Revenue from Rent of Government

Quarters

Revenue from Tuition Fees
Tender Documents

Total

15 - Fair value Gains on Assets
and Liabilities

Reversal of provision for
impairment of Receivables (ECL)
Total

16 - Subvention from other
Government entities
Government Grant Personal
Emolument

Non-Monetary Revenue - Capital
Subvention Capitat

Subvention Development Foreign
Subvention Other Charges

Total

18 - Amortization of Intangibie
Assets

Computer Software Amortization
Total

2023724
TZS

3,193,042,606

12,920,692,428
16,113,735,034

60,447,225
329,565,000

370,000
1,475,245,000
265,517,659

1,740,339,444
2,165,000
3,873,649,328

245,926,386
245,926,386

32,736,035,474

9,889,979,162
3,581,322,139
45,277,539,196
91,484,875,971

77,059,473
77,059,473

2022/23
TZS
Restated

1,020,000

889,684,483

13,093,521,045

14,230,540,528

265,630,000

738,155,000
238,149,715

1,115,638,251
18,478,000
2,376,050,966

27,875,511,743

4,216,628,831
28,215,872,382
1,150,165,512
39,905,034,725
101,563,013,193

78,067,466
78,067,466
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

19 - Depreciation of Property,
Plant and Equipment

Scientific Equipment Depreciation
Boreholes Depreciation

Building Depreciation

Colleges and other tertiary
institutions Depreciation
Computers and Photocopiers
Depreciation

Depreciation Office Furniture and
Fittings

Hardware: servers and equipment
(incl. desktops, laptops etc.)
Depreciation

Hardware: servers and equipment
(incl. desktops, laptops, UPS etc.}
Library Books

Library Books Depreciation

Motor vehictes, Depreciation
Office buildings and structures
Office equipment Depreciation
Office Furniture and Fittings
Depreciation

Office Furniture Depreciation
Other Office equipment
Depreciation

Plant and Machinery Depreciation
Ships, boats and ferries
Depreciation

Sub Total

20 - Maintenance Expenses

Air conditioners

Cement, Bricks and Building
Materials

Cement, bricks and construction
materials

Computers, printers, scanners, and
other computer related equipment
Direct labour {contracted or casual

2023/24
TZS

302,899,313

426,884,591

172,238,907

1,958,119,030
3,965,216,122

1,512,047,136

2,907,231,010
6,771,200

11,251,407,309

13,425,480

160,240,140

819,125

262,014,661

539,108,618

2022/23
TZS
Restated

24,003,377

288,965,715

113,827,091

2,413,944,031
2,691,508,3%9

1,121,342,265

3,402,287,906
6,771,200

10,062,649,984

21,647,661

817,932,587
28,380,809

207,341,969
407,186,938
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

hire) - Buitdings

Direct labour {contracted or casual

hire) - Machinery, Equipment and
Plant

Direct labour {contracted or casual

hire) - Roads and Bridges

Direct labour (contracted or casual
hire} - Vehicles and Transpoertation

Equipment

Direct labour (contracted or casual

hire) - Water and Electricity
Electrical and Other Cabling
Materials - Buitdings

Electrical and Other Cabling
Materials - Water and Electricity
[nstallations

Electrical and Telephone Cable
Installations

Fax machines and other small
office equipment

Fire Protection Equipment
Generator Maintenance
Mechanical, electrical, and
electronic spare parts

Metal Fence and Posts - Buildings
Motor Vehicles and Water Craft
0il and Grease

0il, grease, and other chemical
materials

Outsource Expenses

Qutsource maintenance contract
services - Buildings

Qutsource maintenance contract
services - Machinery, Equipment
and Plant

Outsource maintenance contract
services - Office Equipment and
Appliances

Qutsource maintenance contract
services - Vehicles and
Transportation Equipment

2023/24
TZS

28,036,412

6,131,000

1,399,983

52,587,960

19,844,631

17,818,365

3,335,010

2,148,400

26,542,686
1,184,809

26,798,569

1,020,000
272,715,901
36,082,732

442,000
31,846,729
72,327,107

40,528,946

2,790,000

13,227,993

2022/23
TZS
Restated

19,881,333

8,306,656

237,591,866

24,765,217

15,260,312

1,500,000

31,661,200

93,128,478
7,003,400

6,369,480

950,000
372,914,963
26,995,450

1,875,000
6,275,300

131,236,565

22,028,391

93,350,228
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2023/24 2022/23
TZS TLS
Restated
Qutsource maintenance contract
services - Water and Electricity 15,913,236 8,960,000
installations
Paznt. and Weather Protection 3,700,000 21,576,507
Coatings
Panel land body sh?p repair 565,000 6,114,700
materials and services
Photacopiers 5,257,657 48,950,185
Plumbing Supplies and Fixtures 15,865,749 45,237,695
Repa.lr and Maintenance of 19,886,164 83,733,011
Furniture
Repair and Maintenance of 10,056,809 25 985,749
Sewerage System
Roofing Materials 2,725,000 11,394,212
Small Car Mechanics Toals - 1,355,000
Small tools and equipment 12,064,253 11,004,580
Small tolsand 2,388,000 6,458,000
implements - Buildings
Small tools and
implements - Water and Electricity 3,285,000 9,329,000
Instailations
Spare Parts - Operation 3,800,000 -
Spare Parts - Other 11,132,380 24,408,933
Spare Parts : Vehtcl.es and 169,559,587 121,212,093
Transportation Equipment
Telephone Equipment {mobile) 1,390,000 33,271,900
Telephones and Office PABX ) 1,025,359
systems
TV sets and Radios 5,096,000 1,536,000
Tires and Batteries 136,036,566 162,965,653
Water Pumps 2,680,670 4,114,670
Weather Protection Coatings - 600,000
Wood and Timber Supplies 14,775,000 6,222,600
Wood and Timber Supplies ) 914,500
Expenses
Total 2,068,594,328 3,219,994,150
21 - Other Expenses
Agency fees 13,985,250 30,500,000
Audit fees Expenses 310,000,000 215,004,000
Audit supervision expenses - 70,800,000
| Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

Bank Charges and Commissions
Burial Expenses

consultancy fees

Counting Machine service charge
Director's Fee

education supervision expenses
Facilitation Fees

Freight Forwarding and Clearing
Charges

Fuel Marker Expenses
Honorariums (expert opinion)
Insurance Expenses

Legal fees Expenses

Materials Testing Services Expenses
National Expenses

Outsource of Production Services
Port charges

Registration Fees Expenses
Reserve for Safety Regulator's
Costs

Sales Commission, Discount and
Revenue Share

Security Services

Sticker Charges

Sundry Expenses

Surveys

Taxes Levied by another Level of
Government

Transportation Cost by Ground
Transportation Cost by Water
Transports posts - other expenses
Upkeep of Grounds and Amenities
Expenses

Water Bill Allowance

Total

22 - Expected Credit Loss
Expected Credit Loss
Total

23 - Use of Goods and Service

2023/24
TZS

4,568,329
86,293,976
6,780,800

63,369,000
856,886,582
80,000

49,263,283

2,150,000
176,158,153
60,734,740

184,366,669
320,000

31,303,000
3,000,000

763,725,055
15,000

569,000
700,000

704,000
45,622,141

2,660,594,978

2022/23
TZS
Restated
27,958,552
86,277,193
563,176,132
935,000
101,875,000
410,541,187

300,000
6,499,449
280,932,064
62,866,154
443,200
680,035,673

26,210,011

3,271,800

3,746,144
865,547,630
6,656,800
321,340
20,884,649
6,077,000

3,470,854,978

1,950,940,524.89
1,950,940,524.89
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2023/24 2022/23
TZS TZS
Restated
ti itaki
Accommoda ion H'osp1 atity 50.696,456 33,374,052
Supplies and Services
Accgr&modatmn | 13,000,000
Training - Domestic
Advertising and publication 10,453,160 18,199,508
Advertising and
Publication - Communication & 50,012,664 41,253,858
information
Air Travel Tickets 11,724,472 53,360,200
Training - Domestic
Alr Travel Tickets 97,678,394 93,116,886
Travel - In - Country
i i T ( Out of
Air Travel Tickets Travel Out o 87,459 555 39,980,782
Country
Books, Reference and Periodicals 353,629,010 28,621,000
Bottled Gas - 9,300,000
Catering Services 339,429,924 548,342,505
Charcoal 8,986,800 19,020,480
i ies - d
Cleanmngupphes Use of goods 263,502,604 194,556,208
and Services
Communication Network Services 413,638,141 15,207,752
Compute.r Software - Use of goods 2,250,000 1,600,000
and Services
Computer Supplies and Accessories 56,624,594 164,366,483
Conference Facilities 212,395,500 254,774,527
Consumable Medical Supplies 3,146,621
Contract based training services 3,708,765,656 2,723,770,141
Courier Services 87,746,851 60,855,968
Diesel 1,785,555,677 1,594,967,058
Donation 74,899,845 47,070,737
Drilling consumables
Drugs and Medicines 1,040,000
e Training Materials 467,337,862 553,729,086
Educatlon-ak Radio and TV 72,778,504 98,974,337
broadcasting programming
ElecFrlmty - Utilities Supplies and 904,026,842 954424 578
Services
. ‘- .
Entertainment - Hospitality 90,577,300 88,600,569

Suppties and Services
Examination Expenses
Exhibition, Festivals and

3,973,562,704
101,049,076

2,125,598,263
256,146,663
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2023/24 2022/23
TZS TZS
Restated
Celebrations
Firewood 7,474,100 2,920,000
Food and Refreshments 1,588,148,537 1,659,410,863
Fumigation Expenses 115,928,424 247,142,627
Furniture and Appliances . 23,326,709
Gifts and Prizes 29,636,738 24,219,568
Ground Transport {Bus, Train, 135,937,095 289,536,950
Water)
Ground travel (bus, railway taxi, 838,209,303 818,846,212
etc.) Travel - In - Country
Ground travel (bus, railway taxi, 25,013,293 32,990,123
etc.) Travel Out of Country
Health Insurance Training - Foreign 12,000,000 10,000,000
Hiring of Training Facilities 11,044,000 32,796,000
Inspection Fees - 250,000
Internet and Email connections 348,807,626 390,564,424
Land Rfent Expenses - Other 171,907,560 105,994,926
operating Expenses
Land Scaping 500,000 3,237,710
Laundry and Cleaning Expenses 27,099,869 2,880,000
Lubricants 22,454,501 26,899,420
Medical Gases and Chemicals 629,430 70,570
Mobile Charges 424,305,782 485,006,367
Motor il 598,000 20,465,000
Natu.ral Gas - Utilities Supplies and 52,781,874 66,044,508
Services
News Services Fees 935,000 5,900,000
Newspapers and Magazines 1,222,200 10,952,202
OffIC? Consumables (plaperé, 494,974,126 986,243,870
pencils, pens and stationaries)
Operations and Training Fuel 6,942,500 -485,324,364
Other Gas - 577,500
Outsourcing Costs (includes 921,295,867 615,969 510

cleaning and security services)

Per Diem - Domestic 10,633,204,636 8,660,705,718

Per Diem - Foreign 291,566,390 204,145,026
Petrot 20,011,481 70,783,852
Posts and Telegraphs 180,000 11,930,000
Printing and Photocopy paper 621,804,296 881,751,980
Printing and Photocopying Costs 676,254,832 169,822,872
Printing Material 218,198,081 48,028,786
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

Production and Printing of Training
Materials

Protective Clothing, footwear and
gears

Publicity

Purchased Electricity - TANESCO
Ration - Food Purchase
Remuneration of Instructors
Rent - Housing

Rent - Office Accommodation
Research and Dissertation
Training - Domestic

Sewage Charges - Utilities Supplies
and Services

Software License Fees

Speciat Uniforms and Clothing
Sporting Supplies

Stationery

Student meals

Subscription Fees

Technical Materiats

Technical Service Fees
Tetephone Charges {Land Lines)
Telephone Charges -Utilities
Supplies and Services

Testing Facilities

Training Aids

Training Allowances

Training Materials

Tuition Fees Training - Domestic
Uniforms and Ceremonial Dresses
Uniforms -Clothing, Bedding,
Footwear and Services

Upkeep of Grounds and Amenities
Visa Application Fees

Water and Waste Disposal
{Garbage)

Water Charges

Wire, Wireless, Telephone, Telex
Services and Facsimite

Total

2023724
TZS

1,634,735,976

4,866,000
31,870,000

284,577,754
2,085,000

6,596,640
117,531,500

15,868,067

49,064,041
9,092,313
3,161,782

24,000,000

5,764,025,707
381,331,356
8,792,897,394
586,721,531
49,687,293

11,289,370

36,285,816
4,451,200
403,346,679
396,273,304
334,176,648
95,968,680

107,990,322

13,018,990
4,800,000

1,000,000
691,687,768
22,999,660
50,818,247,973

2022/23
TZS
Restated

1,150,386,295

40,234,589

5,500,000
24,064,474
1,575,295,690
253,116,642
1,000,000
15,500,000

101,975,400

21,916,892

23,161,555
38,921,868
40,049,161

1,928,799,829
135,577,899
7,092,752,477
268,315,355
52,996,090

6,879,496

4,127,039
568,165,151
4,073,734,522
544,362,166
136,782,420

61,020,949

76,301,235
1,800,000

4,457,969
515,968,865
34,848,131

44,245,499,350
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

24 - Wages, Salaries and
Employee Benefits

Accommodation in Lieu of Quarters

Acting Allowance

Casual Labor Discretionary
Casual Labor Expenses

Casual Laborers

Civil Servants

Civil Servants Contract

Civil Servants Contracts
Civilian Staff Allowance

Court Attire Allowance

Diesel Allowance for Judges
Donation and Centribution
Electricity

Electricity Allowance
Extra-Duty

Facilitation Allowance
Expenses -employee

Field (Practical Allowance)
Food and Refreshment

Fuel Allowance

Furniture Expenses

Heavy Teaching Load Allowance
Honoraria

Household Appliances

Housing Allowance discretionary
Expenses

Housing allowance Expenses
internship Atlowance
invigilators Allowances

Leave Travel

Locai Based Staff Salaries
Local Staff Salaries

Medical and Dental Refunds
Moving Expenses

National Health insurance Fund
{NHIF} Employee Expenses
National Health Insurance Fund
{NHIF} Employer Expenses

2023/24
TZS

12,868,000
22,350,000

58,084,255

32,736,035,474

36,260,865

3,000,000

35,738,523
159,312,624
4,455,758,850

1,446,362,618

230,620,626
15,966,967

242,220,000

133,500,000

61,750,000

344,070,000
24,900,000
36,620,000

624,100,418

1,474,640,161

811,110,675

120,110,000

616,851,900

17,574,078

3,474,432

2022/23
TZS
Restated

36,490,000
14,925,000
74,999,645

540,000
27,940,073,893
143,860,877
15,156,180
240,679,000
2,500,000

1,200,000
31,514,546
206,338,068
3,447,023,833

532,263,932

258,040,639
73,123,200

377,785,678
450,000
90,999,768
5,400,000

171,386,000

277,973,035
49,900,000
18,660,000

273,668,415

694,660,572

221,045,031

124,594,906

769,486,530

16,927,807

3,000,000
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

2023/24 2022/23
TZS TZS
Restated
National Health Insurance Schemes 17,023,440 3,610,740
(NHIF) Employee Expenses
National Health Insurance Schemes ) 5 200,498
(NHIF) Employer Expenses
National Social Security Fund 9,550,882 3,706,000
(NSSF) Expenses
Operational Service Staff Expenses 256,817,053 422,869,302
Qutfit Allowance 7,600,000 25,620,000
Professional Allowances 74,800,000 20,612,340
Public Servants Social Security
Fund (PSSSF) Employee Expenses 24,603,698 10,717,219
Public Servants Social Security
Fund (PSSSF) Employer Expenses ) 20,368,822
Public Service Pension Fund (PSPF)
Expenses - Pension benefits )
Public Service Social Security Fund ) 200,000
{PSSSF)Employer Expenses
Responsibility Allowance 523,550,001 436,815,200
Risk Allowance 3,000,000 37,123,000
Sitting Attowance 1,416,761,200 1,411,157,440
Special Allowance 111,200,000 109,080,000
Subsistence Allowance 443,834,000 22,080,000
Telephone - 1,200,000
Telephone Allowance 189,880,000 63,693,165
Transport Allowance 13,460,000 5,873,700
Transport Expenses - 5,825,416
Uniform Allowance - 32,367,000
Water Allowance - 7,380,905
Workers Compensation Fund - Non
pension benefits (Imputed) )
Total 45,747,433,012 38,116,252,969.00
26 - Other Transfers
Contribution to CF (15%) 1,000,000,000 200,000,000
Revenue Transfer revenue (14,784,677,825) (16,412,041,098)
Revenue Transfer expense 14,784,677,825 16,412,041,098
Total 1,000,000,000 200,000,000
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

ENHANCED NOTES FOR CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2023/24
TS

27 - Subvention from other Government
entities
Capital Grant - Local -
Government Grant Personal Emolument 32,736,035,474
Non-Monetary Revenue - Capital 9,889,979,162
Subvention Capital 3,581,322,139%
Subvention Development Foreign 0
Subvention Other Charges 45,277,539,196
Sub Total 91,484,875,971
Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)
Deferred Subvention Capitat - 785,543,271
Deferred Subvention Current -1,561,748,482
Non-Monetary Revenue - Capital -9,641,159,973
Total -11,988,821,721
Receipt from Central Government 79,247,605,059
28 - Revenue Grants
Revenue From Transfer 14,784,677,825
Total 14,784,677,825

29 - Revenue from Exchange Transactions -
Revenue from Annual Fees- Exchange -
Revenue from Examination Fees- Exchange -
Revenue from Inspection Fees- Exchange .
Revenue from Vocational Workshop
Production- Exchange

Vocational Short and Tailor-made course
fees- Exchange

Receivable (GEPG) -
Total 16,113,735,034

3,193,042,606

12,920,692,428

30 - Other Revenue

Products made at vocational school 60,447,225
Application fee 329,565,000
Recovery of Public Maney 370,000
Revenue from Examination Fees 1,475,245,000
Revenue from Rent of Government Quarters 265,517,659
Revenue from Tuition Fees 1,740,339,444

2022/23
TZS
Restated

27,875,511,743
4,216,628,831
28,415,672,382
1,150,165,512
39,905,034,725
101,563,013,193

149,703,477
459,343,632
-4,216,628,831

~3,607,581,722
97,955,431,471

16,412,041,098
16,412,041,098

1,180,000
245,135,000
1,020,000

889,684,483

13,088,566,945

117,334,385
14,342,920,813

0

265,630,000
738,155,000
238,149,715
1,115,638,251
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

Tender Documents

Sub Total

Add/less working capital
Service Receivables {Note 5)
Staff receivables (Note 5)
Sub total

Total

31 - Levies
Income
Total

32 - Wages, Salaries and Employee
Benefits

Accommodation in Lieu of Quarters
Acting Allowance

Casual Labour Discretionary

Casual Labour Expenses

Casual Labourers

Civil Servants

Civil Servants Contract

Civil Servants Contracts

Civilian Staff Allowance

Court Attire Allowance

Diesel Altowance for Judges
Donation and Contribution to CF
Electricity

Electricity Allowance

Extra-Duty

Facilitation Allowance Expenses -employee
Field (Practical Allowance)

Food and Refreshment

Furniture Expenses

Heavy Teaching Load Allowance
Honoraria

Household Appliances

Housing Atlowance discretionary Expenses
Housing allowance Expenses
Internship Allowance

Invigilators Allowances

Leave Travel

Local Based Staff Salaries

Medical and Pental Refunds

2,165,000
3,873,649,328

56,201,764
91,255,209
147,456,973
4,021,106,301

12,868,000
22,350,000

58,084,255

32,736,035,474

36,260,865

3,000,000

35,738,523
159,312,624
4,455,758,850
1,446,362,618
230,620,626
15,966,967
242,220,000

133,500,000
61,750,000
344,070,000
24,900,000
36,620,000
624,100,418
1,474,640,161
120,110,000

18,478,000
2,376,050,966

30,211,325

30,211,325
2,406,262,291

2,950,000
2,950,000

36,490,000
14,925,000
74,999,645
540,000
27,940,073,893
143,860,877
15,156,180
240,679,000
2,500,000
1,200,000
31,514,546
206,338,068
3,447,023,833
532,263,932
258,040,639
73,123,200
377,785,678
450,000
90,999,768
5,400,000
171,386,000
277,973,035
49,900,000
18,660,000
273,668,415
694,660,572
124,594,906
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AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 | ¢5 |



VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

Moving Expenses

National Health insurance Fund (NHIF)
Employee Expenses

National Health Insurance Fund {NHIF)
Employer Expenses

National Health Insurance Schemes {NHIF)
Employee Expenses

National Health Insurance Schemes (NHiF)
Employer Expenses

National Social Security Fund {NSSF)
Expenses

Qutfit Allowance

Professional Allowances

Public Servants Sociat Security Fund {PS55F)
Employee Expenses

Public Servants Social Security Fund (PS55F)
Employer Expenses

Public Service Social Security Fund
(PSSSFYEmployer Expenses

Responstbility Allowance

Risk Allowance

Sitting Allowance

Special Allowance

Subsistence Allowance

Telephone

Tetlephone Allowance

Transport Allowance

Transport Expenses

Uniform Altowance

Water Allowance

Sub Total

Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)
Staff Claim Addition

616,851,900
17,574,078

3,474,432

17,023,440

2,550,882

7,600,000
74,800,000

24,603,698

523,550,001
3,000,000
1,416,761,200
111,200,000
443,834,000
189,880,000
13,460,000

45,747,250,711

-1,991,629,146

769,486,530

16,927,807

3,000,000

3,610,740

5,200,498

3,706,000

25,620,000
20,612,340

10,717,219

20,368,822

200,000

436,815,200
37,123,000
1,411,157,440
109,080,000
22,080,000
1,200,000
63,693,165
5,873,700
5,825,416
32,367,000
7,380,905
38,116,252,969

192,607,819

Payments 43,755,621,565 37,923,645,150
33 - Use of Goods and Service
A ion Hospitality Supplies and
ccqmmodatzon ospitality Supplies an 50,696,456 33,374,052
Services
Accommodation Training - Domestic 13,000,000
Advertising and publication 10,453,160 18,199,508
Advertisi d Publication - C unicati
ver :smg'an Publication - Communication 50,012,664 41,253,858
& Information
Air Travel Tickets Training - Domestic 11,724,472 53,360,200
LControHer and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

Air Travel Tickets Travel - In - Country 97,678,394 93,116,886
Air Travel Tickets Travel Out of Country 87,459,555 39,980,782
Books, Reference and Periodicals 353,629,010 28,621,000
Bottled Gas - 9,300,000
Catering Services 339,429,924 548,342,505
Charcoal 8,986,800 19,020,480
Clea.mng Supplies - Use of goods and 263,502,604 194,556,208
Services
Communication Network Services 413,638,141 15,207,752
ComPuter Software - Use of goods and 2,250,000 1,600,000
Services
Computer Supplies and Accessories 56,624,594 164,366,483
Conference Facilities 212,395,500 254,774,527
Consumable Medical Supplies - 3,146,621
Contract based training services 3,708,765,656 2,723,770,141
Courier Services 87,746,851 60,855,968
Diesel 1,785,555,677 1,594,967,058
Donation 74,899,845 47,070,737
Driliing consumables -
Drugs and Medicines - 1,040,000
e Training Materials 467,337,862 553,729,086
Educatmn:r:il Radio and TV broadcasting 72,778,504 98,974 337
programming
Electricity - Utilities Supplies and Services 904,026,842 954,424,578
Entelrtamment - Hospitality Supplies and 90,577,300 88,600,569
Services
Examination Expenses 3,973,562,704 2,125,598,263
Exhibition, Festivals and Celebrations 101,049,076 256,146,663
Firewood 7,474,100 2,920,000
Food and Refreshments 1,588,148,537 1,659,410,863
Fumigation Expenses 115,928,424 247,142,627
Furniture and Appliances - 23,326,709
Gifts and Prizes 29,636,788 24,219,568
Ground Transport (Bus, Train, Water) 135,937,095 289,536,950
?[:lfnéjozr;;—jl {bus, raiiway taxi, etc) Travel 838,209,303 818,846,212
g;zu;dctz:zly(bus, railway taxi, etc) Travel 25.013.293 32,990,123
Health Insurance Training - Foreign 12,000,000 10,000,000
Hiring of Fraining Facilities 11,044,000 32,796,000
Inspection Fees - 250,000
Internet and Email connections 348,807,626 390,564,424
Land Rent Expenses - Other operating 171,907,560 105,994,926
| Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24
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Expenses

Land Scaping

i_aiundry and Cleaning Expenses
Ltj_bricants

Medical Gases and Chemicals

Mabite Charges

Motor Ol

Natural Gas - Utitities Supplies and Services
News Services Fees

Newspapers and Magazines

Office Consumables {papers, pencils, pens
and stationaries)

Operations and Training Fuel

Other Gas

Qutsourcing Costs (includes cleaning and
security services)

Per Diem - Domestic

Per Diem - Foreign

Petrol

Posts and Telegraphs

Printing and Photocopy paper

Printing and Photocopying Costs
Printing Material

Production and Printing of Training Materiais
Protective Clothing, footwear and gears
Publicity

Purchased Electricity - TANESCO

Ration - Food Purchase

Remuneration of Instructors

Rent - Housing

Rent - Office Accommodation

Research and Dissertation

Training - Domestic

Sewage Charges - Utitities Supplies and
Services

Software License Fees

5pecial Uniforms and Clothing

Sporting Supplies

Stationery

Student meals

Subscription Fees

Technical Materials

Technical Service Fees

500,000
27,099,869
22,454,501

629,430
424,305,782
598,000
52,781,874
935,000
1,222,200

494,974,126
6,942,500

921,295,867

10,633,204,636
291,566,390
20,011,481
180,000
621,804,296
676,254,832
218,198,081
1,634,735,976
4,866,000
31,870,000
284,577,754
2,085,000

6,596,640

117,531,500

15,868,067

49,064,041
9,092,313
3,161,782

24,000,000

5,764,025,707
381,331,356
8,792,897,394
586,721,531

3,237,710
2,880,000
26,899,420
70,570
485,006,367
20,465,000
66,044,508
5,900,000
10,952,202

086,243,870

-485,324,364
577,500

615,969,510

8,660,705,718
204,145,026
70,783,852
11,930,000
881,751,980
169,822,872
48,028,786
1,150,386,295
40,234,589
5,500,000
24,064,474
1,575,295,690
253,116,642
1,000,000
15,500,000

101,975,400

21,916,892

23,161,555
38,921,868
40,049,161

1,928,799,829
135,577,899
7,092,752,477
268,315,355
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Telephone Charges (Land Lines)
Telephone Charges -Utilities Supplies and
Services

Testing Facilities

Training Aids

Training Allowances

Training Materials

Tuition Fees Training - Domestic
Uniforms and Ceremonial Dresses
Uniforms -Clothing, Bedding, Footwear and
Services

Upkeep of Grounds and Amenities

Visa Application Fees

Water and Waste Disposal (Garbage)
Water Charges

Wire, Wiretess, Telephone, Telex Services
and Facsimile

Sub Total

Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)
Inventory

Imprest Payable Long-Term Addition
Imprest Receivable - Staff

Prepayment Consumables

Supplies of goods and services

VAT Payable

Withholding tax

Retantion

Payment

34 - Other Transfers
Contribution to CF
Transfer to NACTVET

Total

36 - Maintenance Expenses

49,687,293
11,289,370

36,285,816
4,451,200
403,346,679
396,273,304
334,176,648
95,968,680

107,990,322

13,018,990
4,800,000
1,000,000

691,687,768

22,999,660

50,818,247,973

63,260,075
-336,715,564
-721,859,264

-22,230,815
-4,465,062,513
-8,068,000
706,067
22,643,393
-5,510,771,307

45,307,476,666

500,000,000
500,000,000

1,000,000,000

52,996,090

6,879,496

4,127,039
568,165,151
4,073,734,522
544,362,166
136,782,420

61,020,949

76,301,235
1,800,000
4,457,969

515,968,865

34,848,131

44,245,499,350

-505,616,721

-390,434,259
-487,613,262
-92,067,694

0

44,219,895
25,086,127
-1,406,425,914

42,839,073,436

200,000,000

200,000,000

Air conditioners 13,425,480 21,647,661
Cement, Bricks and Building Materials 160,240,140 817,932,587
| Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/VETA/2023/24 69
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Cement, bricks and construction materials
Computers, printers, scanners, and other
computer retated equipment

Direct labour {contracted or casual

hire} - Buildings

Direct labour {contracted or casual

hire} - Machinery, Equipment and Plant
Direct labour {contracted or casual

hire} - Roads and Bridges

Birect labour (contracted or casual

hire) - Vehicles and Transportation
Equipment

Direct labour (contracted or casual

hire} - Water and Electricity

Electrical and Other Cabling

Materials - Buitdings

Eiectrical and Other Cabling

Materials - Water and Electricity
Installations

Electrical and Telephone Cable installations
Fax machines and other smatll office
equipment

Fire Protection Equipment

Generator Maintenance

Mechanical, electrical, and electronic spare
parts

Metal Fence and Posts - Buildings

Motor Vehicles and Water Craft

Qil and Grease

0Oil, grease, and other chemical materials
Qutsource Expenses

Qutsource maintenance contract

services - Buildings

Outsource maintenance contract

services - Machinery, Equipment and Plant
Qutsource maintenance contract

services - Office Equipment and Apptiances
Outsource maintenance contract

services - Vehicles and Transportation
Equipment

Outsource maintenance contract

services - Water and Electricity Installations
Paint and Weather Protection Coatings
Panel and body shop repair materiats and

819,125

262,014,661

539,108,618

28,036,412

6,131,000

1,399,983

52,587,960

19,844,631

17,818,365

3,335,010
2,148,400

26,542,686
1,184,809

26,798,569

1,020,000
272,715,901
36,082,732
442,000
31,846,729

72,327,107

40,528,946

2,790,000

13,227,993

15,913,236

3,700,000
565,000

28,380,809
207,341,969

407,186,938

19,881,333

8,306,656

237,591,866

24,765,217

15,260,312

1,500,000
31,661,200

93,128,478
7,003,400

6,369,430

990,000
372,914,963
26,995,450
1,875,000
6,275,300

131,236,565

22,028,391

93,350,228

8,960,000

21,576,507
6,114,700

fmController and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

services

Photocopiers

Plumbing Supplies and Fixtures
Repair and Maintenance of Furniture

Repair and Maintenance of Sewerage System

Roofing Materials
Smali Car Mechanics Tools
Small tools and equipment

Small tools and impiements - Buildings
Small tools and implements - Water and

Electricity Installations
Spare Parts - Operation
Spare Parts - Other

Spare Parts - Vehicles and Transpartation

Equipment

Telephone Equipment (mobile)
Tetephones and Office PABX systems
TV sets and Radios

Tyres and Batteries

Water Pumps

Weather Protection Coatings

Wood and Timber Supplies

Wood and Timber Supplies Expenses
Sub Total

35 - Other Expenses

Agency fees

Audit fees Expenses

Audit supervision expenses
Bank Charges and Commissions
Burial Expenses

consuitancy fees

Counting Machine service charge
Director's Fee

education supervision expenses
Facilitation Fees

Freight Forwarding and Clearing Charges

Fuel Marker Expenses

Honorariums {expert opinion)
Insurance Expenses

Legal fees Expenses

Materials Testing Services Expenses

5,257,657
15,865,749
19,886,164
10,056,809

2,725,000
12,064,253

2,388,000

3,285,000

3,800,000
11,132,380

169,559,587
1,390,000

5,096,000
136,036,566
2,680,670

14,775,000

2,068,594,328

13,985,250
310,000,000
4,568,329
86,293,976
6,780,800

63,369,000
856,886,582
80,000
49,263,283

2,150,000
176,158,153
60,734,739

48,950,185
45,237,695
83,733,011
25,985,749
11,394,212

1,355,000
11,004,580

6,458,000

9,329,000

24,408,933
121,212,093

33,271,900
1,025,359
1,536,000

162,965,653
4,114,670
600,000
6,222,600
914,500
3,219,994,150

30,500,000
215,000,000
70,800,000
27,958,552
86,277,193
563,176,132
935,000
101,875,000
410,541,187

300,000
6,499,449
280,932,064
62,866,153
443,200
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY

National Expenses

QOutsource of Production Services
Port charges

Registration Fees Expenses

Reserve for Safety Regulator's Costs
Sales Commission, Discount and Revenue
Share

Security Services

Sticker Charges

Sundry Expenses

Surveys

Taxes Levied by another Level of
Government

Transportation Cost by Ground
Transportation Cost by Water
Transports posts - other expenses

Upkeep of Grounds and Amenities Expenses

Water Bill Aliowance

Sub Total

Add/less (Change in Working Capital)
Other Payable

Expenses

37 - Deposits

Deposit General

Unapptied Deposit Account Addition
Sub Total

Add/Less (Change in Working
Capital/Movement

Payment

38 - Advance Payment for Acquisition of
Property Plant and Equipment
Total

39-Other structure WIP addition
monetary

Sub total

Total

184,366,669
320,000

31,303,000
3,000,000

763,725,055
15,000

569,000

700,000
704,000
45,622,141
2,660,594,977
91,365,387

2,757,701,666

2,624,898,405
61,735,138
2,686,633,543
45,286,793

2,731,920,336

5,374,310
5,374,310

-5,129,057,545

-5,129,057,545
-5,129,057,545

680,035,673

26,210,011
3,271,800

3,746,144

865,547,630
6,656,800

321,340
20,884,649
6,077,000

3,470,854,977
76,808,302

3,547,663,279

1,401,042,052
-210,473,422
1,190,568,630

1,190,568,630

-14,712,524,645

-14,712,524,645
-14,712,524,645

! Controller and Auditor General
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION TRAINING AUTHORITY

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Surplus/ Deficit for the
Period

Add/ (Less) Non-Cash
ltem

Amortization of Intangibte
Assets

Depreciation of Property,
Ptant and Equipment
Expected Credit Loss
Impairment

Fair value Gains on Assets
and Liabitities
Nan-Monetary Revenue -
Capital

Add/ (Less) Change in
Working Capital

2023-24
TS
-1,905,150,354

77,059,473

11,251,407,309

245,926,386
-9,889,979,162

Restated
2022-23

TIs
16,825,345,265

78,067,466

10,062,649,984
1,950,940,525

-4,216,628,831

Deferred income -2,347,291,733 606,530,867
inventories 63,260,075 449,944,290
Receipts -2,524,982,714 -847,782,897
Payables and Accruals 6,703,480,166 122,754,668
Prepayments 15,014,405 485,672,074
Receivables 690,396,322 269,126,519
Net Cash Flow from

Operating Activities 1,760,767,231 25,786,619,930

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Authority had the following transactions in relation to the
related parties:

2024 2023
TS '000° TZS '000°
Board Directors Fees 53,250 84,243
Directors and principals 1,160,664 1,010,520
Number of Persons 38 23

Key Management Personnet (KMP) inctudes all Directors, Centre Principals and other
members having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling the
activities of the Authority.

41 LOCAL & INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

VETA continued to foster strong retationships with the public, as well as with local and
international organizations. These connections, particularly with employers and various
local and global entities, have significantly contributed to promoting youth employment.
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION TRAINING AUTHORITY

Key Cotlaborations and Activities for the Financial Year Under Review:
1. VETA and Chamber of Mining and Energy Partnership

VETA, in collaboration with the Chamber of Mining and Energy, established a partnership to
train apprentices at the Moshi RVTSC. The program, known as Integrated Mining Technical
Training (IMTT), aims to equip apprentices with the skills needed for the mining sector in
areas such as Platter Welding, Auto Electrical, Electrical, Heavy Duty Moving Equipment,
and Fitting. This project is coordinated by the Chamber, financed by mining companies, and
implemented by VETA Moshi. In the 2023/24 period, 281 trainees (248 males and 38 females)
were enrolled in the program.

2. VETA and Airtel Tanzania Collaboration:

Through its Kipawa ICTC center, VETA collaborated with Airtet Tanzania to develop a mobile
application called VSOMO, available for free on Google Play. This app offers a variety of
short courses designed to meet market demands. The theoretical compenent of these
courses, including tests and exams, is completed through the app, while the practicat
sessions are conducted at the nearest VETA center once the candidate has successfully
passed the theory portion. Course fees are paid via Airtel Money.

3. VETA and Tanzania Education Authority (TEA) Partnership:

VETA’s Singida VTC collaborated with the Tanzania Education Authority (TEA) to provide
funding for training in animal husbandry. During the review period, 40 individuals were
enrolied in the program, and 39 students were certified.

E4DProject:

VETA partnered with KOICA, GIZ, and the EU to conduct the Employment for Development
Tanzania (E4DT) project. The primary objective of this project is to enhance the
employability and economic conditions of young Tanzanians, both men and women, through
demand-driven skills development and job-matching services in cooperation with the private
sector. The target is to train 4,000 individuals, distributed as foltows: Dodoma RVTSC
(2,200}, Manyara RVTSC {800}, Lindi RVTSC (700), and Kipawa ICTC (300). The short courses
offered in this project include Industrial Plumbing, Domestic Plumbing, Industrial Welding,
Domestic Welding, and Mechatronics.

4, VETA and Prime Minister’s Office {PMO) Collaboration:

VETA collaborated with the Prime Minister’s Office (PMO) to enhance Vocational Skilis
among youth in Sectors such as Mechanical, Civil, Cosmetology, Electrical, Automotive, and
Agriculture. During the Financial Year 2022/23, 3,323 trainees benefited from this
collaboration across 32 VETA Centres. The short courses have a duration of six {6) months
of in centre training followed by two (2) months of field attachment.

44, Salary Arrears TZS 801,357,640.93

Salary arrears have been disclosed in this note of the Financial Statements and also in
Section 7.2.3 of the Financial Statements. These arrears are classified as a Contingent
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION TRAINING AUTHORITY

Liability by the Authority and are not recognized as actual liabilities because they fall into
the category of possible obligations. It has not yet been confirmed whether the Authority
has a present obligation that could result in an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential, as outlined in IPSAS 19, part 21 B (i), The timing of the
settlement is also uncertain. The Authority has provided details of these contingencies in
Note 95 of the Financial Statements, except in cases where the likelihood of an outflow of
resources is considered remote.

The Authority has a total of TZS 801,357,640.93 in staff claims classified as arrears. These
arrears primarily stem from the 2019 change in the Scheme of Service, affecting 601
existing staff members.

The Authority also had the following pending litigation against it as at 30 June 2024 which
has not been provided for in the financial statements due to uncertainty retating to their
outcome before the court.
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION TRAINING AUTHORITY

NOTE 49: FUNDS DISBURSED TO VETA FROM MINISTRY OF EDUCATION

CNature -
. Development funds 46,511,569,585 .
| Personal Emoluments (PE) 32,736,035,474
| 79.247,605,059 |

NOTE 50: TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30

JUNE 2024

' No. | GOODS/SERVICES PROVIDED CUENTMES
(RECEIVED) |
1. | SERVICE MUSOMA MUNICIPAL COUNCIL 100,000.00
2. | Employment contribution NSSF 480,000.00
3. LAND RENT MINISTRY OF LANDS REVENUE COLLECTION ACCOUNT 22,712,070.26 .
4. | INSURANCE "' NIC GENERAL DEPARTMENT CURRENT ACCOUNT 6,625,166.99
5. | TRANSPORT SERVICE AR TANZANIA COMPANY LIMTED ~55,000,000.00 -
6. . LAND SURVEY " ARCHETECTURAL ASSOCIATION OF TANZANIA 2,810,000.00 -
7. TRAINING SERVICE " ARUSHA TECHNICAL COLLEGE 13,423,750.00
8. EMPLOYMENT SERVERS . ASSOCIATION OF TANZANIA EMPLOYERS 6,000,000.00
9. | WATER SUPPLY | BAWASA ) 43,717,407.55
10. . AUDIT . CAG COLLECTION ACCOUNT 160,000,000.00
11, . WATER SUPPLY CBWSO YA MII MBAMBABAY 800,100.00
12. | SUBSCRIPTION FEES . CEREALS AND OTHER PRODUCE BOARD 27,479,559.66
130 TMX | COMMISSIONER FOR CUSTOMS AND EXCISE 20,229,421.00
14. [ TAX " COMMISSIONER FOR DOMESTIC REVENUE ILALA 512,852.00 .
15, TAX  COMMISSIONER FOR LARGE TAXPAYER DEPARTMENT  178,443,976.85
|16, | TAXES COMMISSIONER FOR DOMESTIC REVENUE ILALA 2,970,745.71 :
17. | SERVICE CPS MISC DEP EXP ELECTRONIC ACCOUNT 2,000,000.00
18. | WATER SUPPLY . DAKAWA DEVELOPMENT CENTRE : 110,009,781.65 :
719, Construction material testng  DAR ES SALAAM INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 531,000.00 -

20. SERVICE ' DAS SONGEA EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT ~ © 300,000.00
21. | SERVICE . DED Namtumbo Own Source Collection Account 500,000.00
22. 6OODS "DODOMA MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OWN SOURCE 9,016,000.00 -
23, . WATER SERVICE - DUWASA ) 7,170,019.94
24, INTERNET SERVICE e GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY 2,700,000.00 -
~25. | TRAINING SERVICE " ENGINEERS REGISTRATION BOARD 3,150,000.00
26, SERVICE " FIRE " ' © 1,700,000.00
"27." TRAINING SERVICE \ GEPG CHUO CHA UJENZI MOROGORO | 2,975,000.00 °
28. | Water provision | GePG KIGOMA CBWSOS COLLECTION ACC 84,750.00 -
29. " Water provision " GePG KUWSSA COLLECTION ACCOUNT ©165,640.00
30. | INSURANCE ' GePG NHIF ACCOUNT ' 56,889,379.31
31, Diesel/stationary "GOVERNMENT PROCUREMENT SERVICES AGENCY 852,639,794.49

32, MCHANGO WA MWENGE . HALMASHAURI KILOSA ~ 800,000.00
33. (FEES ] HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENTS LOANS BOARD 269,724.24
34.  Contribution National Torch lgunga District Council Miscellaneous Deposit Account ©115,900.00
35. | Water provision “aunga Urban Water Supply And Sanitation (IGUWASA) 5,644,829.50
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION TRAINING AUTHORITY

~ No..

_ (RECEIVED)

| GOODS/SERVICES PROVIDED |

"3,018,000.00

36, SERVICE " ILEJE DISTRICT COUNCIL OWN SOURCE :
37. UHURU TORCH  IMC MISCELLANEOUS DEPOSIT ACCOUNT 300,000.00
© 38. . TRAINING SERVICE INSTITUTE OF ACCOUNTANCY ARUSHA ~1,730,000.00 :
. 39, | WATER SUPPLY IRINGA CBWSO COLLECTION ACCOUNT O 6,715,600.00 !
40. | ELECTRICAL IRINGA SUB TREASURY MISC DEPOSIT EXPAC  500,000.00
41, WATER'SUPPLY . IRINGA URBAN WATER SUPPLY AND SEWERAGE "29,000,000.00
‘5 | AUTHORITY :
42, ELECTRICAL 'KAGERA SUB TREASURY MSC DEP ELECT ACCOUNT & 300,000.00
43, TRAINING SERVICE KARUME INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE AND TECH 672,500.00 |
44, Water provision KIGOMA URBAN WATER SUPPLY AND SANITATION | ©5,270,301.00
. AUTHORITY
45 WATER SERVICES - LINDI URBAN WATER SUPPLY AND SANITATION 6,379,065.00
| AUTHORITY |
46, | TRAINING SERVICE | MAFUNZO CDOTI 4,925,000.00
47. WATER SUPPLY ~ Maji na usafi wa mazingira Korogwe 3,741,119.40
48, WATER SUPPLY " Makete Urban Water Authority 3,768,906.00 .
49. | WATER | MAMLAKA YA MAJI MJl WA CHATO 5,025,255.00 -
50. | Water provision MAMLAKA YA MAJI SAFI KISHAPU ©8,739,580.50
51, | WATER SUPPLY MAMLAKA YA MAJI SAFI NA TAKA NAMTUMBO 3,843,860.00
A - MATI MLINGANO SHF - 511,682.00 -
53, WATER SUPPLY . Mbeya Urban Water Supply and Sanitation Authority 30,376,609.22
54,  SERVICE " MEI MOSI MKOA - IRINGA . 400,000.00
55. | RENT " MINISTRY OF LANDS REVENUE COLLECTION ACCOUNT ~ 132,197,316.80
© 56, . Environmental cleaning  Miradi ya gereza Bariadi 2,000,000.00 :
570 LAWSERVICE - MOROGORO JUDICIARY MIRATHI ELECT ACCOUNT 6,992,727.67 °
|58, | Water bill MOROGORD URBAN WATER 31,706,704.00 .
59. | WATER SUPPLY . MOSHI URBAN WATER SUPPLY AND SANITATION 36,762,247.24
; | - AUTHORITY :
. 60. " WATER SUPPLY Mpanda Water Supply and Sanitation Authority 7,754,876.00
61. | ADVERTISEMENT " MTR MUN COUNCIL OWN SOURCE COLLACC ~ 90,416.00 -
62. | WATER SUPPLY | MTWARA URBAN WATER SUPPLY AND SEWERAGE ©33,228,077.00

- AUTHORITY _
- WATER SUPPLY TMUSOMA URBAN WATER T 1,846,395.73
" Water Supply  MWAUWASA - © 41,370,750.00 -
* TRAINING SERVICE “Mzumbe University Short Course and Consultancy 800,000.00

66, WATER SUPPLY ' NANDAGALA CBWSO {,772,000.00
67 Seminar National Board of Accountant and Auditors (NBAA) " 774,000.00
"68."EDUCATION/TRAINING " NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR TECHNICAL EDUCATION "711,874,320.00
769, HEALTH INSURANCE 77 T NATIONAL HEALTH INSURANCE FUND CONTR 44,725,484.78
70, SUBSCRIPTION FEES - NATIONAL INSTITUTE FOR PRODUCTIVITY T 794,640.00
717 UHEALTH INSURANCE | NATIONAL INSURANCE COOPERATION 113,680,929.03
72, OFFICE RENT | NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND 115,151,237.19
73. | CONSULTANCE SERVICE | NBAA 14,661,250.00
" 74, EDUCATION SERVICE | NECTA 764,399,749.60
~75. | Insurance provision | NIC . 24,027,550.09
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION TRAINING AUTHORITY

;. No

- 76.

. | GOODS/SERVICES PROVIDED
__{RECEIVED)

ENTITIES

©11,983,750.00

| Professional Association

CTAXES

| SAFETY OSHA IMPREST ACCOUNT _
. 77.  SUBSCRIPTION FEES " PPRA 37,850,000.00
78, | CONSULTANCE SERVICE | PRINCIPAL ARDHI INSTITUTE ~3,090,000.00 °
79. | SEMINAR ' . PROCUREMENT & SUPPLIES PROFESSIONALS AND 500,000.00
. TECHNICIANS BOARD :
80. '| PROCUREMENT CONSULTANCE | PSPTB T 4,737,750.00
81. : CONTRIBUTION | PSSSF ©124,938,587.50
82. Membership fee/Seminar " "PUBLIC PROCUREMENT REGULATORY AUTHORITY 6,570,000.00 -
83. | Membership fee/Seminar * PUBLIC SECTOR CEQ's ASSOCIATION 3,000,000.00
84. | Membership fee/Seminar Public Service Management and Good Governance 7 3,010,000.00
85. | MEDICAL SERVICE RMO COLLECTION ACCOUNT o 140,000.00
86. | WATER SUPPLY RUWASA COLLECTION 14,019,183.52
87. | Water provision | SHUWASA 28,179,843.40
88. | SERVICE ) ;  4,562,127.02
789, ¢ FEES " SOKOINE UNIVERSITY OF AGRICULTURE (SUA)  ° 157,334.00
90. - WATER SUPPLY " SONGEA URBAN WATER SUPPLY T  7,154,538.50
9t. TRAINING SERVICE ! Sua Internal Revenue Tz collection " 1,263,000.00
92.  SECURITY SERVICE " SUMA JKT GUARD LTD ) 28,399,902.54
93.  SERVICE . TABORA SUB TREASURY MISCELLANEQUS DEPOSIT 48,410,400.00
: | EXPENDITURE ELECTRONIC ACCOUNT ‘
94, Water provision ~ Tabora Urban Water Supply and Sanitation Authority 14,831,969.15
95.  WATER SUPPLY ~ TANGA URBAN WATER SUPPLY AND SANITATION 32,920,780.15
AUTHORITY - UNAPPLIED (Account Name Mismatch)
96.  CONCRETE CUBES TEST ""UTANROADS REVENUE COLLECTION ACCOUNT 2,075,002.90
97. © ADVERTISEMENT " TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION 7 3,400,000.00
"""" 98. | SERVICE | TANZANIA BUREAU OF STANDARD (TBS) 150,000.00 :
99, | POWER SUPPLY TANZANIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY LIMTED 814,874,046.93
100.} FEES TANZANIA INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION 90,000.00 -
101, TRAINING SERVICE " TANZANIA INSTITUTE OF QUANTITY SURVEYORS 400,000.00 |
"102. Membership fee " TANZANIA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION . 1,100,000.00
103." Construction material testing " TANZANIA NATIONAL ROAD AGENCY 2,092,850.00
104. " POSTAL CHARGES _ TANZANIA PORTS AUTHORITY 8,902,045.29 .
105.  POSTAL CHARGES ~ T TANZANIA POST CORPORATION 49,570,000.00
""" 106.  TRAINING SERVICE  TANZANIA PUBLIC SERVICE COLLEGE - 25,829,000.00 -
107. Subscription fee | Tanzania Records and Archives Management 2,250,000.00

108. _ TANZANIA REVENUE AUTHORITY ©392,816,753.50
109. | DEDUCTIONS | TANZANIA TEACHERS UNION 2,039,960.00
110. COMMUNICATION SERVICES . TANZANIA TELECOMMUNICATION CORPORATION 117,067,320.66
111. TRADE FARE " TANZANIA TRADE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 39,639,066.28
112.7 TANZANIA POSTS " TANZANIA POSTS CORPORATION 300,000.00

113. | Subscription fee * TAPSEA ~3,600,000.00
114, BROADCASTING | TBC 4,248,000.00
115, SERVICE  TEMEKE MUNICIPAL DIRECTOR 450,000.00
116. Maintenance TEMESA 135,598,570.05
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VOCATIONAL EDUCATION TRAINING AUTHORITY

""No. | GOODS/SERVICES PROVIDED |  ENTITIES

_ (RECE{VED) . B

" 117, TRAINING SERVICE _ THE INSTITUTE OF INTERNAL AUDITORS TANZANIA LTO 8,312,288.14 -
118. CONTRIBUTION “The Treasury Registrar S 739,227,857.29 -
119. | CONSULTANCE SERVICE TIA Consultancy Bureau ©3,200,000.00
120. BANKING SERVICE TPB BANK PLC 10,869,188.46 -

121, Airtime Service TICL | 37,408,144.29
122.0 FEES Tume ya Ulinzi wa Taarifa Binafsi 300,000.00

123.1 EDUCATION SUPERVISION TVET WORK - Educaton supervision ©27,646,691.69

" 124. FEES " UUNIVERSITY OF DAR ES SALAMA 4,407,000.00
125. ! FEES UONGOZE INSTITUTE 4,275,000.00

126.

WATER SUPPLY

i URBAN WATER AND SEWERAGE MBEYA

©7,535,061.05

127. CLEANING SERVICE | UTETE PRISON ; 6,389,671.20 -
128.1 TAX | VAT (18%) PAYABLE ON COMMISSION AND FEES: FULL . 733,559.35
129.¢ CUSAL WOKS | WAMI VIJANA PRISON STAFF CANTEEN 2,300,000.00
130.F WATER SUPPLY | WANGING'OMBE WATER SUPPLY AND SANITATION 1,100,000.00

- AUTHORITY _
131.) PANGO LA ARDHI WIZARA YA ARDHI 15,520,128.00

. 132, CONTRIBUTION WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND 10,804,087.78
133 | INSURANCE ~ ZANZIBAR INSUARANCE CORPORATION 2,400,000.00

'6,174,735,482.04
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